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ASSDlBLYMAN· AU:XANDER B. GRANNI S,

.CHAIR,HEW'YORlC STA'I'EASSEMBLY" STANDING COMMITTEE

4

ON INSURANCE:

I know you're all as excited to be

5

here as we are, so I appreciate the -- the

6

attendeQce.

7

under ASsembly rules, which calIon the substantive

8

committees to have oversight hearings on the

9

budgets that come under their jurisdictional

These hearings'are' being conducted

10

authority.

This morning the focus is on the budget

11

of the State Insurance Department and with a real

12

focus on the suballocations, the large and growing

13

amount of suballocations from that budget to other

14

state agencies.

i

!

15

Since 1984 the Department's budget

16

has been raised entirely from fees charged to

17

insurers and other licensees for examinations and

18

assessments on insurers.

19

prescribed in Section 332 of the Insurance Law and

20

are based on each company's premium volume.

21

Companies obviously pass these assessments along,

22

as they do with all of their business expenses, to

23

their customers in the forms of higher premiums.

24

The Department's budget has doubled since state

The assessments are

Associated Reporters Int'i., Inc.
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1

2

f·iscal year '94-95, a mavical year.

Obviously we

3

pickedtlult for a,reasCln, .but it.'l!Lg'rown.frCl'll $87,

4

O~O,OOO

5

year, to $177 million in the current 'year's budget.

6

But this increase 1n budget authority

in that starting point, that '94-95 fiscal

7

cannot be traced to current increases in services

8

for insurance consumers or licensees to the best of

9

our knowledge.

Instead vast amounts of the budget

10

are now being sub-allocated to other state

11

agencies.

12

$4.5 million dollars to other state agencies which

13

was about five percent of the agency's budget.

14

the current fiscal year the suballocations have

15

reached $65 million a 1500 percent increase and now

16

represent more than a third of the Department's

17

budget.

18

The '94-95 budget allocated a total of

In

One can make a case that some level

19

of suballocation in certain areas brings a benefit

20

to insurance consumers in support of the Department

21

of Law's fraud unit, as an example.

22

concerned this practice has spiraled out of

23

control.

24

citizens buying Medicare sub-policies, consumers

I am very

New York's insurance consumers, senior

Associated Reporters Int'l., Inc.
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purchasing their own health cdVerage, businesses

3

buying liability and Worker Compeoverage, New

4

Yorkers insuring. their cars and homes are already

5

paying sky-high rates for their coverage. . It is

6

hard for me to see how these suballocations are

7

anything more' than a tax on hard-pressed insurance

8

consumers.

9

I am pleased that we will hear

10

today from some of the agencies that receive

11

suballocations and how this money is being spent.

12

That's important since interagency suballocations

13

make accountability more difficult.

14

which I suspect has the most to do with the current

15

suballocation practices, however, the Division of

16

the Budget, has chosen not to testify despite a

17

written invitation and several telephone

18

invitations from my office.

19

disappointment, but perhaps we can arrange to hear

20

from them at a later date through other means.

21

fear right now is that with the '96-97 budget in

22

the works and to be presented in just a few weeks

23

that we will be presented with a January surprise

24

that will involve millions of dollars more added

The agency

This is a great

Associated Reporters Int'l., Inc.
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cost. tQr struggling insurance consiurlera,

But that

3 i 8 the· cpn tEl)(t •
4

I'm joined by Wil·l Barclay,. the.

5

ranking minority member of the Insurance Committee,

6

and j?eter Newell who's the Committee Director.

7

we will look forward to your testimony today.

And

8

The first panel already seated is

9

Louis Pietroloungo, the First Deputy Superintendent

10

of the State Insurance Department, Frank Milano,

11

the acting Secretary of State for the Department of

12

State, and Dennis Whalen, Executive Deputy

13

Commissioner of the Department of Health.

14

take your pick.

15

I'm--

MR. LOUIS PIETROLOUNGO, FIRST.

16

DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT, STATE INSURANCE DEPARTMENT:

17

Okay.

18

Good morning.

19

Grannis, and members of the Committee for the

20

opportunity to testify at this hearing on the

21

Insurance Department's suballocations to other

22

state agencies.

23

am the First Deputy at the Insurance Department.

24

am joined today with acting Secretary of State,

I have some opening remarks, Mr. Chairman.
We would like to thank you, Chairman

My name is Lou Pietroloungo and I

Associated Reporters Int'l.,Inc.
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2

Frank Milano" and Dennis Whalen,the Bxecutive

3

lolePlllty CODIIhissioner of.the Dep&rtinent of Health.

4

You have a copy Gf our, submitted' test'iJnony which is

5

being sul:mtltted·on behalf of' the Department'!f of

6

Banking, Health,Insurance and State, and the

7

Division of Criminal Justicee Serviees.

8
9
: 10
11

12

The Insurance Department's
2005-2006 operating budget, which was $177 million

included $62.8 million in the form of
suballocations to other state agencies ..
The mission of the Insurance

13

Department is to supervise and regulate the

14

business of insurance in this state for the benefit

15

of insurance consumers.

16

Department is fully capable of conducting its

17

regulatory functions. there are numerous insurance

18

programs that could be implemented for the benefit

19

of consumers that the Insurance Department does not

.20

have the requisite experience or in some cases the

21

appropriate jurisdiction to implement and oversee.

22

The choice then is either to fund the program

23

through taxation, through suballocations, or not

24

fund the program at all.

While the Insurance

As our submitted

Associated Reporters Int'l., Inc.

800.523.7887

.. " UIlIIr.IIlIl6; .......... to'

,1waIIIIIJ--' Q:nmIaoc . . 1IImroIICe;_ ~ 1JII1., 100.

Page 9

1

Proceedings - Insurance - 12-20-2005

2

testimony demonstrates, the prograJllSic being· funded

3

. through the.:iInlWrlUlce Depart:mentF subal1o<:;atiel1l.s

4

have... ". elmu- nexus· to· insurance,qonsumers and the'

5

msuriiUlce.in'dustry.

6

produced

7

form of reduced premiums, better health care or

8

lower property damage cost..

9

s.~~ngsfor

And in Ute·lam.;: run generally
insurance consumers in the

I think it is appropriate at this

10

time to discuss briefly each of the programs that

11

the Insurance Department funds either partially or

12

fully from the use of suballocations and describe

13

how the insurance consumer benefits.

14

the Banking Department's high cost claims

15

processing office is partially funded from an

16

Insurance Department suballocation.

17

and after World War II Jews and other minority

18

groups were victims of the Holocaust, so much of

19

their personal property seized.

20

physical items taken, but liquid assets as well.

21

In addition, insurance claims made by policy

22

holders in relation to the Holocaust often went

23

unpaid by the insurance companies.

24

same insurance companies and banks are now in the

As you know,

Before, during

Not only were

Many of these

)

Associated Reporters Int'I., Inc.
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2

process of making restitution for these actions,

3

however, many records have been lost and finding

4

clailMllts or (:laims -- claimants finding these

5

records can prove almost imposs±ple.
The Holocaust Claims Processing

6

7

Office fills this need, working either as a bridge

8

between claimants and the international

9

organizations leading the recovery or directly

10

pursuing claims.

11

through 2004 had helped to return over 89 million

12

in bank claims and $11 million in insurance claims

13

to claimants.

14

The Holocaust Processing Office

The public policy objective

15

served by the operation of the Holocaust Claims

16

Processing Office are appropriately funded by the

17

industry'S generally which hold or held the claimed

18

assets.

19

the Banking Department were or are funded by the

20

appropriations budget into the Holocaust Claims

21

Processing Office.

22

process in the Holocaust Claims Processing Office

23

and funding it by a suballocation from the

24

Insurance Department obviated the need to duplicate

No other previous or current functions of

Locating the insurance claims

Associated Reporters Int'!., Inc.
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this operation in the Insurance Department solely

3 t o haIidie insurance claims.

The suballocaticm from

4

the Insurance Department is insurance related

5

because it pays for cost associated with the

6

'r.ecovery of unpaid insurance claims.

There' s

7

direct benefit to certain insurance consumers as

B

prior policy holders who never receive restitution

9

for a legitimate claim.

While it is true that this

10

only concerns European companies, many Holocaust

11

survivors or survivors of victims live in the

12

United States and in New York.

13

Holocaust Claims Processing Office's assistance

14

these people may never have received their just

15

compensation.

16

Without the

Department of Health also

17

receives funding from the Insurance Department's

18

budget which enables them to implement various

19

insurance related disease prevention programs that

20

improve the health of consumers, thereby reducing

21

overall health care costs.

22

the Center for Community Health which provides

23

cancer and heart disease prevention, diabetes and

24

arthritis controlled programs in addition.

These programs include

Associated Reporters Int'!., Inc.
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2

following are examples of community heilllthbased

3

init:,iaHves which.benefit insurance payers-and

4

health.lI4re consumers' .

Cancer screenings and

5

6

evidence-based public health intervention that

7

saves +ives'and reduce costs to insurers and the

8

state.

9

survival rates on ninety-eight percent, while the

10·,.

Early stage breast cancer, five year

late stage survival is twenty six percent.

11

In the case of colorectal cancer,

12

five year survival decreases from ninety percent to

13..

ten percent when the cancer is found at a late

14

stage.

15

In addition. the cost of treating

16

cancer increases dramatically with disease stage.

17

The cost of treatment of early stage cervical

18

cancer is $2000 compared with the cost of $30,000

19

for late stage cervical cancer.

20

The Department of Health has

21

provided since 1994 over seven hundred seventy

22

eight thousand uninsured individuals with breast,

23

cervical and colorectal cancer screenings.

24

Another Department of Health

Associated Reporters Int'l., Inc.
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2prpg1:alll is ,the officia.l prescription program, also

as

theE'orge, Proof Pzoescription: P~t'am~

3

known

4

reduce fraudulent prescriptions, claims whlt'h'dxive

5

up health care costs, the program requires the use

6

of official prescrip,ti'Oll forms.

7

now been expanded so that the official prescription

8

contains state' of the art securi ty features

9

specifically designed to prevent counterfeiting,

'!'his program has

10

alterations and forgeries, all of which are

11

fraudulent activities used to divert dxugs to

12

non-legitimate use.

13

To

The Department of Health. along

14

with federal agencies, has investigated numerous

15

incidents where non-controlled substances have been

16

fraudulently obtained and reT sold to pharmacies,

17

then dispensed to unsuspecting patients.

18

the quality, efficacy and sterility of these

19

medications cannot be guaranteed this program

20

reduces threats posed to public health.

21

with saving estimates provided by Medicaid the

22

Division of Budget has estimated that the expanded

23

Official Prescription Program will save private

24

insurers approximately $79 million annually through
Associated Reporters Int'!., Inc.
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the

reducti~n

in fraudulent prescription claims.

·In addition to .saving private

3

4

insur~rs

5

prescription drug fraud, ·the official prescription

6

pro~ram

7

prescribing.

a

private insurance industry millions of additional

9

dollars by decreasing medication errors.

$75 million through the deorease in

is also designed to increase electronic
Electronic prescribing will save the

It is

10

estimated that 55 percent of all medication errors

11

are due to misinterpretation of practitioner's

12

instructions on handwritten prescriptions.

13

private insurance industry has recognized the

14

benefits of electronic prescribing and is

15

spearheading several major projects designed to

16

encourage its usei

17

significantly reduce the estimated $130 million in

18

annual costs to New York's health care system

19

caused by adverse drug events due to errors in

20

written and oral prescriptions.

21

The

Electronic prescribing will

There are also two separate

22

insurance departments suballocations that support

23

the Department of Health's regulation of the

24

Managed Care industry in the state.

f

Associated Reporters Int'\., Inc.
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2

~~fices

3

shares \:responsibilitywith the Insurance Department

4

for the regulation, oversight' and monit:€ll!"ing of

5

managed' care organizations licensed under Article

6

,44 of the Public Health Law.

7

million New 'torkers, approximately 36.6 percent of

8

the state's population get their health coverage

9

through one of these plans.

of Managed Care the Department of Health

OVer s,lx point nine

In recent years New

10

York has turned to Manage Care delivery systems to

11

provide health care to government programs

12

including Medicaid, Family Health Plus and Child

13

Health plus.

14

Managed Care has increased from approximately

15

650,000 to over two million.

16

Since 1995 enrollment in Medicaid

Over 500,000 adults are enrolled

17

in managed care plans from Family Health Plus and

18

over 300,000 children are enrolled in managed care

19

through Child Health plus.

20

programs are administered by the Department of

21

Health.

22

All three of these

The Insurance Department also

23

provides a suballocation to Division of Criminal

24

Justice Services that partially funds the continued

Associated Reponers Int'l., Inc. '
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2

roll-out of its TraCS Program.

TraCS, which stands

3

for the Traffic and Criminal Software, is a

4

sophisticated yet simple to use electronic'data

5

collection and reporting tool for traffic tickets

6

and accident reports.

7

suballocation was distributed to the Division of

8

State Police to fund the purchase and installation

9

of TraCS equipment in approximately 300 trooper

In fact the entire

10

vehicles.

This purchase enabled the state police

11

to complete the roll-out of TraCS equipment in all

12

1203 trooper vehicles.
Long delays in accident report

13
14

data processing have hampered the effort to reduce

15

insurance fraud in New York.

16

automobile insurance fraud in the state costs

17

insurance companies approximately $1 billion each

18

year.

19

effectively combat this problem because they do not

20

have timely access to the information contained on

21

the accident reports.

22

data processing it takes a significant amount of

23

time to enter the data into the state accident

24

information system and make the reports available

It is estimated that

Insurance investigators are unable to

Because of the backlog in

Associated Reporters Int'l., Inc.
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2

for distribution.

3

investig~tors

4

the claimant's submission • . As a result tens of

5

thousands of suspicious claims must be settled

6

because investigators lack sufficient information

7

to challenge them.

are left to a just claims bAsed· on

8

9

Without.the accident report

An

accident report created in

TraCS can be electronically transferred from a

10

police car, approved by a supervisor, forwarded for

11

input in the accident information system and

12

available for review by an investigator in a timely

13

manner.

14

strategies and reduce insurance fraud, New York

15

must receive and process traffic data from tickets

16

and accident reports on a real time basis.

17

is the solution.

To develop effective traffic safety

TraCS

The Insurance Department also

18
19

funds various initiatives of the Department of

20

State including its Office of Fire Prevention and

21

Control, O.F.P.C.

22

preventing or reducing losses from fires and other

23

emergency incidents would

24

property, automobile or medical insurance losses,

Programs that are targeted at

p~event

or reduce fire,

1

Associated Reporters Int'l.. Inc.

800.523.7887

I~AhnY,HY,.u-,s-._ ... -.~~III!'I"Inc_

Page 18

1

Proceedings - Insurance - 12-20-2005

2

and ultimately cost to the consumers.

3

program is the implementation of the -Fire safety

4

Standards for Cigarettes.

5

has implemented fire safety standards for

6

cigarettes to lower their risk of igniting, for

7

example, on upholstered furniture or mattresses.

8

The world's first regulation of the ignition

9

strength of cigarettes requires that all cigarettes

As you know, a.F.p.C.

10

sold in the state meet an ignition strength

11

performance standard.

12

;

One such

Notwithstanding the short period

13

the program has been in effect, its success is

14

evidence in the decline in the number of smoking

15

related fatalities.

16

smoking materials declined from an average of 40

17

per year for the period of 1997 to 2002 to only 28

18

last year.

19

to fires caused by cigarettes fell from an average

20

of 24 to 18 percent.

21

initiatives only six states in the nation have

22

lower civilian injuries per thousand structure

23

fires and only nine states in the nation have lower

24

average property loss per vehicle.

Deaths from fires caused by

The percentage of all fire deaths due

For these types of

I

Associated Reporters Int'I., Inc.
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2

programs are clearly paying

3

consumers.

4

divi~ends

to insurance

"Further, the insurance industry

5

recognized the. importance of training and fire

6

department operations which are the very programs

7

that are being administered by O.F.P.C.

8

Insurance Services Office, a rating organization

9

that develops advisory forms and loss costs with

The

10

the property casualty industry allocates 50 percent

11

of a municipality's rating to its effectiveness of

12

its fire fighting operations which include fire

13

department, water supply, alarm systems and codes.

14

Another Department of State

15

program is Urban Search and Rescue Program which

16

provides technical rescue assistance to emergency

17

responders

18

of the

19

deployed on September 11th, also during the capsize

20

of the Stella Marest in Albany and in cavein

21

rescues in Schoharie.

22

with statewide capabilities.

Members

Urban Search and Research Program were

Another important program within

23

the Department of State is for it's Division of

24

Code Enforcement and Administration, which provides
Associated Reporters In!'l., Inc.
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2

direct benefits to insurance consumers by

3

facilitating the construction andmaintelUUlceof

4

safe. buildings.

5

contribute to catastrophe or loss of life in the

6

event of a fire or natural disaster.

7

consumers enjoy the benefit of fewer losses and

8

reduced premiums.

9

Safe buildings are less likely to

As a result

Finally, the Insurance Department

10

suballocations provide funding to the Office of

11

Attorney General for two important insurance

12

programs.

13

no-fault fraud.

14

actually has been a proliferation of no-fault fraud

15

in New York, which I stated earlier, cost an

16

estimated $1 billion per year.

17

automobile insurance fraud in New York is a

18

significant contributing factor to high automobile

19

insurance rates in the state.

20

9th, 2001 Governor Pataki proposed a series of

21

legislative and regulatory steps designed to

22

confront the rising cost of automobile insurance in

23

New York.

24

Pataki designated the Attorney General a special

The first is to investigate and combat
Over the last decade there

The prevalence of

Therefore, on May

Pursuant to Executive Order 109 Governor

Associated Reporters Int'!., Inc.
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ana

2

prosecut:orto cO.ordinate the investigatory

3

prosecutorial efforts related to fraudulent auto

4

ins·urance claims.

5

be seen with the recent 72 count indictment'of

6

eight suspects and one law. firm allegedly involved

7

in submitting fraudulent no-fault and bodily injury

8

claims to insurance carriers.

9

seek the forfeiture of $2.2 million in illegally

Thesuct:ess of this program can

These indictments

10

obtained proceeds.

11

fraud unit has brought felony insurance fraud and

12

related charges against 272 defendants.

13

To date the auto insurance

The actions of the Auto Insurance

14

Fraud Unit have had a definite impact on the

15

marketplace.

16

decline in losses for private passenger automobile

17

insurance.

18

Insurance Fraud Unit, as well as other measures

19

implemented by Governor Pataki, the Insurance

20

Department called on automobile insurers to reduce

21

their rates.

22

approved a record number of auto reduction, saving

23

policy holders almost $400 million.

24

auto insurers including ,the top three in terms of

Since 2002 there's been a significant

As a result of the success of the Auto

To date the Insurance Department has
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2

market share, Auto, GEICO and State Farm, have

3

reduc,ed ,or are, reducing their rates an average of

4

five percent in 2005.
The other sub-allocated program

5

6

funds the Insurance Department's Cooperative

7

Agreement with the Office of Attorney General to

8

provide for the ongoing joint investigation into

9

broker insurance compensation and pricing

10

practices.

The Insurance Department's joint

11

investigation with the Attorney General over the

12

last two years uncovered compensation arrangements

13

in the insurance industry that may have been lawful

14

on their face, however. they have been used

15

inappropriately and sometimes illegally as we saw

16

with bid-rigging and steering.

17

yardstick led to these transgressions in the

18

insurance marketplace and the need for additional

19

scrutiny by regulators and prosecutors.

20

illegal or inappropriate practices became the

21

catalyst for the current stream of criminal, civil

22

and regulatory actions imposed jointly by the

23

Insurance Department and the Office of the Attorney

24

General resulting in the imposition of hundreds of

Lack of an ethical

These

!
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2

millions of dollars of restitution to insurance

3

consumers, not just in New tork, but across the

4

nation.

5

The Marsh and McLennan

6

investigation resulted in an $850 nillion

7

restitution settlement agreement.

8

major brokerage firms have admitted to steering

9

clients to certain insurance companies while

Since then the

10

soliciting fake bids in order to create the

11

perception of true competition.

12

In addition to the Marsh

13

settlement, the state also secured settlements with

14

Aeon Corporation and Willis.

15

were financially beneficial to consumers,

16

collectively returning more than one billion

17

dollars to policy holders nationwide and also

18

required these firms to implement sweeping reforms

19

designated to avoid conflicts of interest.

20

investigations are currently in progress.

21

These settlements

Other

In conclusion, the Insurance

22

Department's mission is to protect insurance

23

consumers and the programs funded by suballocations

24

to advance this mission.

The benefits gained by
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2

insurance and other consumers through subsidized

3

sub-alioeated programs far outweigh the costs

4

associated with these programs.

5

insurance related programs are not funded from the

6

Insurance Department's budget either they would

7

have to be eliminated and the benefits derived by

8

consumers would be lost, or some other source of

9

funding would have to be identified in instances

If the important

10

where the program is fully funded through Insurance

11

Department's suballocations.

12

program is not fully funded through the Insurance

13

Department's suballocations elimination of the

14

sub-allocated funding would most likely impair the

15

effectiveness of the program to the detriment of

16

consumers.

In cases where a

Thus, we believe that the current

17

18

programs have positively contributed to the

19

betterment of the health and welfare of all New

20

Yorkers including insurance consumers and should be

21

considered.

22
23
24

Thank you and we will be happy to
answer any questions.
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:
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2

much.

That's a statement for four agencies.

3

Let me j.ust ask. I guess my.

4

concern stems from the fact less from the programs

5

that you described and more from your agency's

6

involvement in how these program suballocations

7

were first determined.

8

easement is $270 million has been sub-allocated

9

over the last decade and that's a staggering amount

So,

the extent of the

10

of money to be passed on to insurance consumers.

11

How do you know that any of these monies are spent

12

in a way that benefits insurance consumers?

13

monitor the programs the Health Department uses the

14

monies for or the Department of State or the

15

Department of Law or the Department of --?

16

MR. PIETROLOUNGO:

Do you

Well, my

17

personal involvement, of course you realize these

18

programs began in 1977 and suballocations have been

19

in effect since then and we certainly have seen

20

increases.

21

with TraCS. with the fraudulent prescription

22

program also.

23

new fraud fighting effort.

24

cases when I did see suballocations, cost and all.

I can tell you my personal experience

And also with the Attorney General's
In each of those three
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2

and we had as an example with the Forge Proof

3

Prescription Program.

4

Health for what was two and a half hours to discuss

5

the benefits of the program and quite frankly was

6

able to see what the benefits would be in terms of

7

the return cost to the consumer.

8

we put all these things together for all of the

9

years it is a lot of money, but each year of course

I met with the Departntent of

And I know when

10

we have to fund something that appears to be

11

excellent in terms of what the consumer is getting.
with the TraCS system, as an

12
,13

example, I sat down with the folks in TraCS

to

14

determine, you know, well, their question

15

was since I had retired from the New York City

16

Police Department after 33 years their question to

17

me was can you get these folks to sign onto this

18

program.

19

spoke to the people with respect to TraCS I mean I

20

was confident that D.C.J.S was doing the job they

21

had to do.

22

to me

And we did make some attempts, but when I

And with the Attorney General I

23

was asked early on before the office was even --

24

the office was even established, you know, what
Associated Reporters Int'l., Inc.
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should the funding levels be.

And I had some

3

'earlier discussions with the folks there and quite

4

frankly I was very happy with what they were able

5

to tell me.

6

cooperation and coordination afterwards.

7

speak, Mr. Chairman, to all of these items, but I

8

can say that my experience with the Department has

9

been that they're all looked at.

The mission -- we talked about
I can't

And we do look at

10

the bottom line, the benefit to the consumer.

You

11

know, I read some things and quite frankly I mean

12

it to me is impressive that we can get these things

13

done, I mean just the inoculations in the long

14

term.

15

early detection practices for cervical cancer and

16

then at the end it's $30,000.

17

intuitively it rings true, it says this is working,

18

this is helping somebody.

19

there was something, and that's why I had asked

20

specifically to look at the Forge Proof

21

prescriptions and I asked -- in fact it was Neil

22

Levin (phonetic spelling), may he rest in peace,

23

asked me to work with the Attorney General.

24

an interest.

When we talk about it costing $2000 for

I mean I just --

And quite frankly if

I took a serious interest.
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2

to know where the money was going.

3

new to the business and I wanted to make sure that

4

I did the right thing.

5

know, ask if there are other -- other responses,

6

but that's what I know, Mr. Chairman.

Again, I was

So, I mean I can now, you

7

MR. MILANO:

Assemblyman, Lou' s

8

opening statement also was sort of an executive

9

summary of testimony I think that's 41 pages in

10

length that goes into far greater detail.

11

your specific question to Lou, former

12

Superintendent Siereo (phonetic spelling) was

.1-3

personally and intimately involved in almost every

14

operation of our O.F.P.C.

15

former fire chief at his local fire department.

16

had a personal interest.

17

for the superintendent to speak with our bureau

18

chiefs and our chief fire administrator on a weekly

19

basis.

20

regularly.

21

took over I've spoken with him several times and

22

kept him generally abreast of these things.

23

the program and line people at the Department of

24

Insurance as far as I know are intimately involved

funct~ons.

As to

He was a
He

It would not be uncommon

And I spoke with the superintendent quite
Similarly, since Superintendent Mills
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and informed as to what's going on at the

3

Department of State, particularly withO.F.P.C.

4

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

Let me just

5

ask sort of a general question.

6

focused on the benefits of how the program is paid

7

for and how the decisions are made to pay for them.

8
9

I guess I'm less

And with each of these, were
these suggestions by the Insurance Department say

10

hey, let us, you know, pay for something so that

11

you don't have to put it in the regular budget,

12

we'll just dun the insurance consumers for the

13

TraCS program or the Forge Proof Prescription

14

Program or the -- I mean going back I mean these

15

are huge chunks from $4.5 million to $79 million in

16

the last ten years.

17

from the Insurance Department to the Division of

18

the Budget saying we've got a great idea for you,

19

let's let the insurance consumers pick up the tab

20

for this so you don't have to use general tax levy

21

money for these programs?

22

Were those all suggestions

MR. PIETROLOUNGO:

I can't really

23

answer that because I can only speak to a few of

24

the programs that have been implemented since I'm
Associated Reporters Int'l., Inc.
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here.

3

,,

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

Let me ask

4

you, the TraCS Program and the Forge Proof

5

Prescription Program, those are the

6

MR. PIETROLOUNGO:

The TraCS

7

Program as I recall we were involved, and again

8

part of it was fraud prevention.

9

things we recognized that the TraCS Program would

And one of the

10

be able to provide, as I had mentioned in the

11

testimony, live data.

12

heard from my frauds people is that they were

13

hearing from the S.I.U.'s that it was very, very

14

difficult to get an accident report so they can

15

bring the person in for an investigation and ask

16

them specifically about the report, because there

17

was a certain time limit that they had to respond

18

to the reports.

19

discussion of

20

TraCS Program and we realized the benefit that can

21

be gained, not only with respect to fraud, but you

22

know, you have the engineering stuff that can be

23

done, education, enforcement, engineering, the

24

three E's of traffic control and traffic safety.

It was missing.

What I

So, that began as just a
fraud.

And when we looked at the
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These are the things that this program was able to

3

bring and we realized that there were several

4

benefits that the consumer can gain by this.

5

so we went along with the program and we agreed,

6

and I believe again from the bottom of my heart

7

that this is a good program for the consumers of

8

New York because they'll all benefit.

9

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

And

Is there any

10

way for you to distinguish between programs that

11

are good for consumers that are properly the

12

responsibility of all the taxpayers as opposed to

13

those taxpayers who buy insurance products?

14
15
16

MR. PIETROLOUNGO:

Yeah, I don't

think I can answer that question.
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

I guess I view

17

this as a cash cow, you know, for the

18

administration as proven by this incredible run-up

19

in the numbers without any, you know, I guess

20

discussion until today about how this process

21

works, how these decisions are made, how you came

22

up with these ideas to somehow not charge doctors

23

for the Forge Proof Prescription Program, the

24

prescriptions which they used to do.
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have to contribute and now what. we're paying for

3

prescription pads for doctors that other people

4

used to pay for and they used to be given away. the

5

doctors used to buy themselves, somehow $16

6

million.

7

to buy prescription pads for doctors so that they

B

don't have to bother themselves with that part of

9

the prescribing practice.

What's the program cost now?

16 million

Dennis, I just don't

10

understand, and I guess it's less the benefit of

11

the program.

Nobody wants people to gain

12

MR. WHALEN:

Right.

13

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

14

prescriptions, but why should consumers of

15

insurance products bear that cost as opposed to the

16

general public?

17

There's a --.
MR. WHALEN:

Right.

Mr.

1B

Chairman, the comment that I would offer is I think

19

that you can consider, at least in the Department

20

of Health set of suballocations, some of which are

21

very directly related to the operational

22

responsibilities of our mutual agencies.

23

you look at the hospital inpatient rate setting

24

function or you look at the certification of
Associated Reporters Int'!., Inc.
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managed care plans, really in the development of

3

those programs and the responsibilities or as the

4

statutes changed in those areas, there was no

5

situation there where a suballocation from the

6

Insurance Department replaced another source of

7

funding, for example.

8

development and thinking about how those

9

responsibilities were related and most

But I think really in the

most

10

apparently on the side of managed care where both

11

agencies share responsibilities to oversee and

12

regulate some of the very same programs that the

13

thought was here'S a direct benefit where we can

14

identify a revenue stream that's entirely

15

appropriate to use the suballocation method.

16

By the same token I'd argue that

17

the hospital inpatient rate-setting function where

18

we set those rates for the Insurance Department's

19

use related to the auto side makes sense.

20

Forge Proof was a program that,

21

you know, is vastly different than the Triplicate

22

Prescription Program.

23

program to cover all prescriptions and not simply

24

those on certain federal schedules.

We've now expanded that

)
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physical

3

benefit most immediately in terms of reducing fraud

4

and I think calculated a $70 million savings which

5

was based on a fairly conservative estimate I

6

believe of about 2.5 percent fraudulent

7

prescriptions in the realm of all the prescribing

8

that goes on.

that was done at that time looked at the

It will also pay longer term

9

10

benefits because that puts us on a platform that

11

will facilitate electronic prescribing which will

12

have additional savings somewhat related to fraud,

13

but probably most primarily related to

14

mis-prescribing or medication errors which probably

15

account for a 125, 135 million again estimated cost

16

per year.

17

Then there's another set of

18

programs which I would contend aren't so directly

19

related, but which clearly have a benefit and those

20

are the ones

21

Center for Community Health which are largely

22

around prevention and screening efforts involved

23

with chronic and other diseases and you know, how

24

those get chosen.

that Lou talked about in terms of the

I

Those were instances where
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general funded dollars were funding, or in some

3

cases federal grants or, other, you know, fees that

4

might have applied.

5

that most of the suballocation discussion began

6

when there was a ramp-up or an increase in the

7

benefit being provided or an expansion of that

B

program in some way where we expanded, for example,

9

treatment to uninsured individuals who had received

10·
11

And in those instances I think

screening for various cancers, for example.
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

Let me come

12

back to the Insurance Department's oversight.

13

do you do to ensure that these savings that you've

14

identified in your statement collectively for the

15

agencies that receive this monies, as well as your

16

own, are actually reflected'in rates?

17

million dollars, you know, ain't peanuts obviously

18

in the overall scheme of

19

but it seems to me for insurance consumers that are

20

already paying extraordinarily high rates in this

21

state and we hear about it all the time from

22

drivers, from businesses, from Worker's Comp, lots

23

of different things.

24

the fact that there's a direct return to consumers

things.

What

And 60 or 70

It's not a lot,

How do you ensure and monitor

)
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that is reflected in their premiums as a result of

3

this off-loading of the state's responsibility to

4

them?

5

MR. PIETROLOUNGO:

I'm not

6

absolutely sure, Mr. Chairman, how our actuaries

7

account for this.

8

auto rates, ! mean it's just that there's less

9

there's more arrest, there's less fraud, so they

I know probably in the case of

10

can factor that in.

I'm not sure how they do it on

11

the medical side, but I'd certainly be willing to

12

talk
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

13_

That's your

14

job.

15

have contained in your statement that, you know,

16

these are savings that, you know, are out there and

17

obviously, you know, if you think about it

18

intuitively there are savings in doing some of

19

these activities, but if consumers are paying for

20

them they ought to see the benefits in some

21

measurable way.

22

I mean your job is to -- and you obviously

MR. PIETROLOUNGO:

I'm sure

23

there's someone in the Department that could

24

articulate how that process works.
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at this point I cannot.
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS!

3

You know,

4

several years ago when we put a tax on diagnostic

5

services done by independent labs, outside labs,

6

the labs quickly figured out that if they listed

7

that tax all hell would break loose because

8

everybody would see it.

9

appreciation among consumers of insurance products

I guess there's no

10

that these add-ons are in fact jacking up their

11

premiums and see whether or not they might have the

12

same reaction.

13

for you and me at this point not to let people know

14

what we've been doing for them, but maybe that's an

15

idea.

16

know, on every premium there's a couple extra

17

dollars, car insurance.

18

insurance.

19

I'm already paying four or five bucks more for

20

something unrelated to anything that you're doing

21

and these agencies are doing, but then on top of

22

that comes this added boost for -- and I gather

23

it's not broken out.

24

for the TraCS Program and the health consumers

I guess that's probably convenient

Maybe the public ought to know that, you

I have to have car

I don't have a choice.

You know, and

The auto insurers don't pay
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don't pay entirely for the Forge Proof

3

Prescriptions, it's just sort of a general

4

allocation in which everybody, whether or not their

5

particular product is related to the benefit or to

6

the off-load, is picking up the tab, isn't it?

1

It's just

8
9

MR, PIETROLOUNGO :

Again, Mr.

Chairman, I can't be sure, but I would have to

10

suppose that if we're saving $28,000 by early

11

screening that's somehow reflected in the rate.

12

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

And it's hard

13

I guess using the rationale that -- it's hard to

14

imagine almost anything in the state that couldn't

15

be used except for public outrage this

16

suballocation formula.

11

good part of the funding that we have to raise from

18

general tax levy and just stick it all on the

19

insurance consumers because I think you could come

20

up with the justification for the either actual or

21

supposed benefits from doing fire safety

22

inspections and you know, lots of other things,

23

training for rescue people, running medical

24

clinics, and early diagnosis of, you know, of

You might be able to skip a
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possible breast cancer and cancer cases.

3

there's -- these are all great things, the question

4

is why should the insurance consumers be picking

5

them up as opposed -- is there anything in this 160

6

or 70 billion dollar budget that you believe isn't

7

justified, I mean should not be the responsibility

8

of insurance consumers?

9

MR. PIETROLOUNGO:

I mean

Well, we did

10

find, Mr. Chairman, a nexus between insurance and

11

what these programs are producing.

12

understand your point and unfortunately I don't

13

know they factored this in to the rate schedule.

14

But I'd certainly be willing to try and get back to

15

you with it, with the answer.

16

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

And I fully

And do you

17

have any idea how many of these are connected to

18

cost for personnel at the various agencies as

19

opposed to like paying for Forge Proof

20

prescriptions and --?

21

,
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MR. PIETROLOUNGO:

I think I'd

22

have to leave that up to the individual agencies to

23

determine what their specific cost was per person.

J

24

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:
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2

there a lot of --

3
4

MR. PIETROLOUNOO:

We sort of

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

-- citizens

know

5
6

livelihood depends on these suballocations.

I

7

don't think the question was ever about cutting off

8

the suballocations --

9

MR. PIETROLOUNOO:

Right.

10

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

-- it was a

11

question about the propriety of using this. you

12

know, very convenient funding mechanism which seems

13

to have, you know, gained considerable appeal over

14

the years, and I tracked the numbers here.

15

mushrooming, as we mentioned 1500 percent increase

16

in ten years as more and more of the budgeteers,

17

and I'm sorry that the budget office isn't here,

18

came up with these ideas.

19

the other question about how the decisions were

20

made.

21

other agencies, Lou, and you all have talked about

22

the programs, but were these suggestions that came

23

from the budget office to the agency saying figure

24

this out?

And it's

It is a

And so it comes back to

I know you've talked to these

}

Or did the agency go saying look, why
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2

don't we stick it to the insurance consumers to pay

3

for the TraCS Program or for the health clinic, the

4

community health program?
MR. WHALEN:

5

I can only comment,

6

Mr. Chairman, on those suballocations in the

7

Department of Health.

8

that in some cases as those programs developed at

9

the time either, you know, in budget negotiation

And I believe, as I said,

10

during the legislative session or elsewhere, that

11

the relationship was so apparent, so Managed Care

12

being an example, Forge Proof being an example,

13

Rate Setting being an example, where you don't have

14

a situation where there's a substitution. for

15

example, of previous funding sources for the

16

SUballocation.

17

Certainly in our case we do have

18

some personnel on those grants because you know.

19

Rate Setting is a function where you need a rate

20

setter to sit down.

21

think the rate setting suballocation supports two

22

or three rate setters.

23

intensive.

24

cost of printing the forms. does have, you know.

It's not a huge number.

I

Some are more staff

So, Forge Proof, in addition to the

\

)
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2

not insubstantial. I think 30 or so personnel

3

associated with that because that also involves

4

development of the prescription registry and a fair

5

amount of enforcement with undercover investigators

6

and others who will be going out and insuring that

7

that program works well.
In other cases I'm sure it was as

8
9

a function of a Division of the Budget. you know,

10

raising the question with the agency or with the

11

Insurance Department of you know. would this make

12

sense.

13

does it make sense to consider a suballocation in

14

this way.

15

It appears to us there's a benefit here,

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

For the most

16

part a collaborative decision by the agencies and

17

then you took the idea to the Division of the

18

Budget and saying, look, we've got a way to pay for

19

a program so you won't have to take it out of

20

general tax levy funds?

21

MR. WHALEN:

I think, again, it

22

depends on the particular suballocation.

In some

23

cases where there's so clear a relationship that

24

it's, you know, deemed a no-brainer, that you know,

/
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2

the relationship is quite clear, the benefit is

3

quite clear.

4

by a budget decision, but I think in all of those

5

cases there was also a discussion back with our

6

agency and with S.I.D. does this make sense, or is

7

it, you know, an off the wall.

8

plenty of off the wall ideas from the Division of

9

the Budget as well.

In other cases I'm sure it was driven

Because we get

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

10

So, do you

11

suppose if the Insurance Department had said look,

12

people are already paying enough in insurance, we

13

don't think they could pick up the tab for $16

14

million for the Forge Proof Prescription Program,

15

we think this is a bad idea, where do you think

16

that suggestion would have gone?
MR. WHALEN:

17

In that instance I

18

think the estimate was that it's going to save $75

19

million for insurers.
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

20

It may save

21

$75 million, we don't know whether it shows up or

22

how it shows, if it shows up in their premium

23

savings.

24

I'~

sorry, Frank, you were --.
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2

MR. MILANO:

No. that's --.

3

MR. WHMEN:

I mean just as you

4

could add a line in your insurance bill that says.

5

you know. we're using X percent of your cost to do

6

this or that, it would equally arguable to say

7

we're not including this and therefore your premium

8

is going to go up because the disease burden is

9

going to increase for a population which we

10

otherwise have to cover.
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

11

Just do you

12

think the Hospital Closing Commission ought to be

13

off-loaded to the Insurance Department budget?

14

you could probably make a case that fewer beds,

15

more rational delivery of health care results in

16

lower costs for health care consumers and so you

17

might as well make the auto payers and property and

18

casualty payers help pick up the tab for that

19

program as well.

20

MR. WHALEN:

21

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

And

I mean nothing --.
And I guess

22

I'm trying to figure out where this stops.

23

know, a third of the budget, you mentioned before

24

that the Banking Department, they have a
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2

suballocation.

3

what their total budget is in the Department?

4
5

MR. PIETROLOUNGO:
what their total budget is.

10

I don't know

Do you know

what the total suballocation is from their budget?
MR. MILANO:

8

9

Do you know

No, sir.

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

6

7

What's their budget?

Several $100,000 I

think.
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

Considerably

11

under $1 million dollars.

12

same benefits seen from, you know, sticking it to

13

banking customers for the array of programs that

14

are paid for by fees and other things that benefit

15

banking customers as the insurance consumers?

16
17

I mean why aren't the

MR. MILANO:

Well, I'll speak for

the Department of State --

18

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

19

MR. MILANO:

All right.

-- Mr. Chairman.

20

Going back to a question you asked of Mr. Whalen a

21

couple of questions ago, I think the Department of

22

State's use of these monies in whatever form

23

they're provided is appreciated is attributable to

24

a number of different factors.
Associated Reporters Int'l., Inc.
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2

statutory obligations, fire safe cigarettes, with

3

which we're all familiar,

4

came out of a task force report and then ultimately

5

legislation which arose out of the Seton Hall

6

tragedies of the late '90s.

7

additional responsibilities.

c~us

fire safety, which

So, these are

8

In addition, we've been spending

9

a large portion of some of the Department of State

10

giving testimony to other legislative bodies

11

talking about meeting an increasing demand for fire

12

training and other different types of first

_13

responder training and a review of our provided

14

testimony will reflect that those demands continue

15

to grow and grow and grow.

16

mechanisms by which that demand can be met, both

17

the new statutory demands and the increasing

18

existing programmatic obligations and

19

responsibilities.

20

seen the largest increase over the last several

21

years virtually all of the other programs funded at

22

the Department of State have been flat.

23

fact we were originally appropriated for fire safe

24

cigarettes $5.55 million.

And these were

And but for O.F.P.C. which has

And in

}

We found -- initially we
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2

created the worlds first standard there.

After a

3

year's worth of experience we found that that was

4

not necessary and in consultation with Budget the

5

next year's appropriation in '02-03 was

6

million and that has remained flat over the last

7

three years.

8

regard.

9

statutory responsibilities have largely been the

$1.07

So, experience has helped us in that

And the expanded obligations in new

10

cause for those allocation increases for the

11

Department of State.
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

12

I certainly

13

appreciate the work the Department's done on the

14

fire safe cigarette issue and you know, you are to

15

be commended.

16

in Boston, Harvard School for Public Health, which

17

your representative was there and the work that

18

your agency did was

19

I was at a conference two weeks ago

MR. MILANO:

Thank you.

with

20

some appropriate urging from other sources it was

21

the worlds first standard.

22

had failed, the state of Vermont had failed.

23

Canada adopted a national standard utilizing our

24

standard and a couple of other states have adopted

The national government
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1

2

that standard as well.

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

3

4

So, thank you.
A significant

state on the West Coast --

5

MR. MILANO:

It's under --.

6

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

when

7

Governor Schwarzenegger signed a bill modeled on

8

ours.

9

MR. MILANO:

10
11

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

But let me --

the suballocations, though, have not been.
Insignificant.

12

You started off

13

in '94,

'95 with a $1 million dollars, it's now at

14

$100 million and that's a -- I'm trying to figure

15

out, that's a quantum leap over, you know, a

16

decade.

That's

17

MR. MILANO:

Some of those

18

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

Your

19

suballocations, you know, exceed the growth and the

20

suballocations of the Department by 2 or 300

21

percent.

22

MR. MILANO:

Well, for example,

23

in code $6 million of that is directly attributable

24

to the fact that between '98 and '02 codes was out

)
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1

2

of a special revenue fund.

3

determined beginning in '02-03 that the codes

4

program would be funded out of that amount.

5

accounts for a full $6 million.
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

6

7

And then it was

MR. MILANO:

9

was a special insurance 'fund.

10

That was 54-G.

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

11

special

12

revenue account?

13

MR. MILANO:

14

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

MR. MILANO:

decided

20

at that point to

23
24

Yes.
Assessed

Against

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

19

22

Was it a

municipalities.

18

21

That

against?

16

17

What was the

source of that special revenue account?

8

15

That

MR. MILANO:

And so we

Beginning--

beginning in . 02 and • 03.
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

-- substitute

that with an assessment against insurance
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consumers?
MR. MILANO:

3

I think beyond

4

providing health, safety and welfare benefits to

5

all New Yorkers the programs at the Department of

6

State do directly benefit insurance consumers and

7

do help keep their insurance premiums at a lesser

8

rate than they would otherwise be if the Department

9

wasn't providing those services.

10

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

I'd just

11

suggested that, you know, these programs, as worthy

12

as they may be, benefit in many ways all New

13

Yorkers.

14

MR. MILANO:

They do.

15

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

And to the

16

extent that, you know, you start breaking out

17

funding sources, and we often looked at special

18

revenue accounts and, you know, paying for programs

19

with fines and other kinds of things, making them

20

highly dependent.

21

flexible way because you don't depend on how much

22

the fines are, you just depend on how much you

23

think you need and then back door it through the

24

assessment process back to insurance consumers.

This happens to be a very
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2

And I'd just suggest to you that may not be the

3

most appropriate way to pay for -- to cover state

4

obligations except for the convenience of not

5

having to pay for these things with general revenue

6

dollars which are always scarce, particularly when

7

you can
MR. MILANO:

8

9
10
11
12

But I would

respond
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

-- who do have

a choice on some of these issues.
MR. MILANO:

My response to that

13

would be that there are, and you'll find it in the

14

testimony, written testimony, demonstrable

15

instances of programs which the Department of State

16

employs and undertakes which do directly benefit

17

the insurance consumer.

18

services organization, for example, which SO

19

percent of which is directly related to fire

20

protection within a given municipality and within a

21

given district within the municipality that depends

22

on such things as the efficacy and efficiency of a

23

given locality'S fire department, its equipment,

24

its training, its number of volunteers.

There is an insurance
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In addition to that, a large

2
3

component of

the I.S.O. rating depends upon

4

whether or not a municipality has a building code

5

and whether or not it's effectively enforced.

6

higher -- it's ranked from one to ten, one being

7

best, ten being the highest.

8

you have the more insurance, homeowners insurance

9

premium you will pay.

A

The higher ranking

And it would not even be

10

uncommon, and it is not uncommon within a given

11

municipality for one fire district to have a better

12

I.S.O. rating than the next.

13

higher districts are paying more.

14

extent that we can provide services and keep an

15

I.S.O. rating for a given fire district, for

16

example, lower, that will be a direct benefit to an

17

insurance consumer.

18

testimony which will reflect that New York State is

19

very well represented in terms of fire debts per

20

capita and casualty losses per capita.

21

very good and we're very, very competitive and the

22

reason for that is directly attributable to many of

23

the programs being employed at the Department of

24

State that are directly funded by the Department of

The people in the
So, to the

And there is a chart in the

We're very,

)
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Insurance.

3

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

4

several other questions.

5

Search and Rescue Program.

6

to insurance costs in any way?

I've got just

Tell me about the Urban
How does that connect

7

MR. MILANO:

The Urban Search and

8

Rescue Program is a program that responds to a

9

variety of natural and man-made disasters.

It also

10

is deployed to save people, rescue people.

And to

11

the extent that it performs services which enables

12

a municipality to save life and save property, it

13

responded to mud slides and collapsed structures in

14

Schenectady.

15

and save lives. dollars will be saved.

16

believe. a 512.000 appropriation modest and it's

17

very well regarded and very well received.

And to the extent that they respond

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

18

That's. I

Well, Wow the

19

tap dance kid and that's no disrespect for -- only

20

I realize these decisions, and Lou, I know you

21

addressed this in your statement, primarily are

22

driven by the one agency that isn't here, which is

23

the Division of the Budget, that comes up by my

24

understanding and from your testimony with a lot of

)
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the initiation of these ideas and some of --.
MR. MILANO:

3

Mr. Chairman, the

4

USAR Team does save lives and that matters and it

5

matters obviously, but it further matters in terms

6

of insurance rates being set.

7

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

8

about it.

9

ways with lots of other things.

No question

I mean insurance is linked in many, many
I mean I can think

:10

of ideas in the agricultural field and many other

~1

areas that perhaps haven't yet found their way to

12

the Division of the Budget where we could come up

.13

with justifications for, you know, continuing this

14

run-up on these suballocations as opposed to paying

15

for these worthy programs by direct tax levy funds

16

which is the role of government and not to try to

17

figure out subsets to pay for things that while

18

they save lives they benefit everybody.

19

appreciate that and obviously this is going to be a

20

concern I have.

21

Will

So, I

you may ask some

22

questions.

And I just want to make sort of a final

23

request though.

24

on these suballocations I would ask that you

As part of this continuing focus
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2

actually provide us with -- and you have done it in

3

here, but sort of running -- a running estimate of

4

what you figure savings are and how those are

5

reflected in premiums.

6

particularly pleased to find that their premiums in

7

the auto field are the second highest in the

8

country and you know, on the border being the

9

highest, and that part of that cost is attributable

10

to things that might well save them money, but they

11

don't see it that way.

12

those checks for premiums and they find out that

13

they're two dollars less from being the most

14

expensive in the country, I mean they are not happy

15

and the idea that somehow premiums would be even

16

higher except for the fact that your premiums are

17

so high that we're using some of this money to keep

18

them from going even higher, is a particularly

19

appealing message and it's not very easy to sort of

20

sell that message to people that are angry and that

21

we hear about, Lou, you know, and you do too, I

22

know you do, complaining about the premiums.

23

24

I don't think anybody is

I mean when they write

And this final item.

We've asked

before and we raised these issues at the last
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budget hearing about the releasing the budget

3

our consideration of the budget.

4

Do you ever hear from

the

5

insurance industry complaining about these

6

suballocations or are they just perfectly happy to,

7

you know, sock it to us and we're just going to

8

pass it along, we can blame you, we don't have to

9

make any judgment about this?

10

}
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MR. PIETROLOUNGO:

11

at.test to the fact that

12

but I have not heard any complaints.

13

~hey're

I cannot

perfectly happy,

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

I heard a lot

14

of complaints when we proposed -- when the

15

Department -- when the Governor proposed to tax

16

certain segments of the industry more.

17

there was a howl about that, but I have never heard

18

anybody complain about this.

19

experience that no industry people have ever voiced

20

concerns or objections to these suballocations?

21

And I know

Is that your

MR. PIETROLOUNGO:

When I check

22

with my coworkers and the folks that have been

23

around for a while they indicate to me, no, they

24

haven't heard anything.

Whether or not there are
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2

whispers and people would like to see things

3

different and just don't want to state them

4

publicly, I'm not sure, but certainly many of these

5

programs I've talked to folks about -- and

6

especially in a fraud area because that's, you

7

know, and everyone is happy with those particular

8

areas, and
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

9

It wasn't that

10

long ago when I was having hearings on the fraud

11

issue.

12

MR. PIETROLOUNGO:

I remember.

13

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

And the

14

industry itself was perfectly sanguine about what

15

was going on because they didn't give a damn, they

16

were just passing along the costs of fraud and you

17

know, it didn't make any difference to them because

18

they weren't swallowing the costs.

19

come a long way and the Department's been an active

20

partner in that effort to get them to focus their

21

attentions on fraud, but it's the same kind of

22

thing.

23

fraud -- until fraud, you know. started to be

24

the

Now, they've

I didn't hear a word complaining about

i
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2
3

MR. PIETROLOUNGO:

one has come to me to complain, so --.
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

4

5

As I said, no

Okay, sir.

Will.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER BARCLAY:

6

7

have maybe a short question.

8

testimony.

9

with the suballocations.

I just

I appreciate all your

I don't necessarily have any problem
The programs only seem

10

cost beneficial and I don't really have a problem

11

with how they're paid for, but I do share some of

12

the Chairman's concern about the nexus to

13

insurance.

14

of all, has there ever been a program maybe to your

15

knowledge that's been turned down because the nexus

16

was maybe too far afield of the insurance indust.ry?

What do you think going -- well, first

17
18
19

MR. PIETROLOUNGO:
of that.

I'm not aware

No, sir.
ASSEMBLYMEMBER BARCLAY:

Is there

20

anything in place going forward to ensure that

21

there is a solid nexus between this and you know,

22

it's not paying for something that maybe should

23

more be paid for by general funds?

I

24

MR. PIETROLOUNGO:
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2

understanding that that's just part of the process

3

as they move these things through the budget.

4

mean these are discussed and decisions are made and

5

things are accepted or not accepted, you know, and

6

I guess that would be the best place to begin to

7

look in depth at what's going on.

8
9

ASSEMBLYMEMBER BARCLAY:
How about in the Department of State?

I

Right.

I know you

10

obviously get a lot of your funding probably

11

through fees and whatnot.

12

suballocations that you provide for other programs

13

that may aren't related?

14

Pete mentioned the banking.

15

common -- I may be naive about some of the

16

budgetary process.

17

Are there any

I don't know.

You know,

Are there -- is that a

Is that --?
MR. MILANO:

We receive from some

18

other state agencies, NYSERDA and ENCON, some other

19

modest suballocations as well, but this is the

20

primary source of our sub-allocated funds to the

21

Department.

22
23

ASSEMBLYMEMBER BARCLAY:

Do you

do any sub-allocating yourself?

)

24

MR. MILANO;
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back to you on that.

3
4

ASSEMBLYMEMBER BARCLAY:
lost that material.

5
6

MR. MILANO:
physical director.

7
8

Yeah, I

I'm looking at my

Thanks.
MR. BARCLAy:

No, thank you.

That's all.

9

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

Dennis, just a

10

couple of other things about the Triplicate

11

Prescription Form Program that morphed into the

12

Forge Proof.

13

Prescription Program?

14

was that a.Departmental direct appropriation?

Who paid for the Triplicate
Was that a suballocation or

15

MR. WHALEN:

16

special revenue account that I think was -- you

17

recall that we borrowed some for that from the

18

P.M.C. account.

19

pads that were ordered by the physicians.

20

and this can change over time.

21

reason that we chose to move ahead with the Forge

22

Proof Program at no cost to the physician was

23

you'll recall that this, I think. was the second or

24

third year where this was proposed, but we were

No, that was a

We also had fees related to the
I mean

I mean part of the

}

Associated Reporters Int'l., Inc.

800.523.7887

SOO.52J.7887

Page 61

1

Proceedings - Insurance - 12-20-2005

2

successful largely because physician concern about

3

the cost of new pads was put by the wayside.

4

will have to be examined as physicians get more

5

used to using this new program.

6

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

That

I guess the

7

question is are you requesting a reappropriation of

8

the same amount for the Forge Proof?

9

in next year's budget

10
11

MR. WHALEN:

Well. what do

you --?

12
13

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

-- the Forged

Proof Prescription Program?
Yes.

14

MR . WHALEN:

15

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

16

MR. WHALEN:

17

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

18

Will that be.

So--

But I think the --.
-- $15 million

a year to print prescription pads?

19

MR. WHALEN:

I think the reques t

20

will be -- you know, there may well be some

21

reappropriation that's in a ramp-up period, so it's

22

just starting and I'm not sure at what level it

,

23

will be in.

"'

24

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:
Associated Reporters Int'I., Inc.
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2

somewhat rhetorical, Dennis.

3

your budget that you couldn't sit here and make a

4

argument for nexus insurance?

5

MR. WHALEN:

Is there any part of

I mean I think

6

there's clearly a relationship between health

7

status, early intervention, the efficacy of

8

treatment in an earlier stage of disease as opposed

9

to a later stage of disease that would have an

10

impact on how an insurer would look at the question

11

actuarially and decide to price a premium.

12

there are some things that are quite clearly more

-13

related, again, and I point to those where there's

14

an intersect between responsibilities that both

15

S.I.D. and Health share over Article 44 programs or

16

setting rates directly related to insurance issues.

17

You know, it's more difficult on the health side

18

although we've chosen to really focus on those

19

screening and more of the preventive and the

20

chronic disease area side than to simply say yeah,

21

everything is fair game and we can do a

22

sUballocation.
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

23
24

-

relief.

-~

..

That's a

And just a question about the Office of
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2

Fire Prevention and Control.

3

for with suballocations?

Is that entirely paid

4

MR. MILANO:

5

approximately 62 percent of O. F . P. C. 's budget.

No.

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

6

It represents

And what did

7

it -- is that -- what did it used to be?

8

a hundred percent?
MR. MILANO:

9

What, the

10

suballocation monies?

11

and the suballocations to O.F.P.C. have increased

12

over the last nine years.

13

has averaged over that nine-year period about six

14

percent, never exceeding six percent, except in two

15

years where there was a dramatic jump in the early

16

'01-02 period.

17

increases.

18

say that O.F.P.C. over the last nine or ten years

19

has seen its suballocation increase by

20

approximately six percent.

21

its $23.7 million budget I think 13 or 14 are

22

sub-allocated through the Insurance Department.

23

No.

That was

It evolved over time

I hasten to add that it

There were some retroactive pay

So, for argument's sake it's fair to

And there other

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

And on the

)
24

fire safe cigarette suballocation were any of
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2

these -- was any of that money for the

3

suballocation used for new hires or was it all for

4

contracting out the technical work?

5

MR. MILANO:

Both.

6

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

Both.
Can you give

7

me at some point if not today, how many new hires

8

were paid for that versus --7

9

MR. MILANO:

I think strictly off

10

of the appropriation I think we hired four

11

F.T.E.'s.

12

fire protection specialists that are involved in

13

the program that do other things,

14

New York City they'll be doing a campus fire

15

inspection, on a Tuesday they'll be doing their

16

fire safe inspections.

17

but we did, I believe, hire four new people off of

18

the allocated funds.

But having said that, we have ,thirty two

So, it's not a question,

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

19

On a Monday in

Any of the

20

personnel that are paid for with this program, I

21

guess, are anything linked to a suballocation

22

targeted to enforce -- do enforcement work?
MR. MILANO:

23

Those are the 32 I'm

j

24

speaking of.

The 32 fire protection specialists
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2

are enforcing the fire safe standard now today.

3

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

Can you

4

just -- we can follow up on this later.

5

they do?
MR. MILANO:

6

Sure.

What do

Well, between

7

February 1st of this year and November 30th of this

8

year I believe they conducted approximately 926

9

inspections.

They go to retailers and they first

10

ensure that the product on the shelf is marked as

11

compliant.

12

with fire safe cigarettes today is actually test

13

the cigarettes that are on the market.

14

enforcement is they're out in the field,

15

geographically spread, going throughout the state

16

to find any violations and refer them to the

17

Attorney General.

The other big portion of what we do

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

18

But the

And the field

19

testing of cigarettes is done internally or

20

contracted?

21

MR. MILANO:

We contracted that.

22

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

All right.

Thank you.

23
)

MR. MILANO;

24

....

~-

-------

----.
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CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

2
3

Thank you very

much.

4

Kathy Bennett.

5

MS. KATHY BENNETT, CHIEF OF

6

LEGISLATIVE BUREAU, OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL:

7

Good afternoon.

8

the Chief of the Attorney General's Legislative

9

Bureau.

My name is Kathy Bennett and I'm

Attorney General Spitzer

10
11

appreciates your interest in our activities and we

12

welcome this chance to come here today to talk to

13

you about our accomplishments with the two

14

suballocations that we receive from the Insurance

15

Department.

16

replaces other funding in the Attorney General's

17

budget.

18

that have enabled us to target specific types of

19

unlawful activity.

20

suballocation supports our efforts to fight auto

21

insurance fraud, and I'll address those efforts

22

first.

23
J

24

Neither of these suballocations

Rather, they represent additional funds

The larger and longer existing

New York's no-fault law governs
the provision of medical care to people injured in
Associated Reporters Int'!., Inc.
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2

motor vehicle accidents.

3

victim may also pursue a separate bodily injury

4

claim including damages for pain and suffering, if

5

he or she has suffered a serious injury as a result

6

of an accident.

7

from the Insurance Department, in the state's

8

no-fault program have been identified by the

9

industry as a major factor in escalating policy

An injured accident

Fraudulent claims, as you heard

10

premiums.

11

professionals and others have conspired to prey on

12

the insurance system with the costs of their

13

illegal activity passed on to insurance consumers.

For too long shady steerers, crooked

In 2001 as a result of Governor's

14
15

Executive Order 109, appointing the Attorney

16

General as special prosecutor for insurance auto

17

fraud, we established a unit, the Auto Insurance

18

Fraud Unit, A.I.F.U., in the Attorney General's

19

office.

20

Insurance Department.

21

It, is funded with a suballocation from the

Between January 2002, when

22

A.I.F.U. made its first sweep of arrests, and last

23

month, felony charges have been brought against a

24

total of 272 defendants in 18 counties throughout

}
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New York State.

3

doctors, lawyers, medical clinic managers and

4

owners and steerers who are individuals who refer

5

accident victims to medical clinics and law firms

6

in exchange for money.

7

215 guilty pleas and verdicts at trial, yielding a

8

conviction rate of 90 percent.

9

imposed have ranged from probation to three and a

10
11
J

Proceedings - Insurance - 12-20-2005
The defendants have included

We have obtained a total of

The sentences

half to seven years in state prison.
I will begin by describing the

12

details of some of our cases to illustrate the

13

complexity of the schemes we encounter.

14

that with respect to pending criminal cases,

15

individual defendants are, of course, presumed

16

innocent until and unless proved guilty.

17

I note

In 2004, 20 individuals were

18

charged in Queens in a far-reaching scheme to

19

defraud insurance carriers of an estimated 1

20

million under the no-fault system.

21

including doctors, other health care providers,

22

attorneys and steerers were alleged to have

23

manipulated the no-fault system by soliciting motor

24

vehicle accident victims to attend a medical clinic
Associated Reportev; Int'!., Inc.
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1
2

purportedly owned by one of the defendants, a

3

doctor.

4

actually managed and controlled by two of the other

5

defendants, neither of whom had health provider

6

licenses or any medical training.

The indictment alleged that the clinic was

7

Once solicited to attend the

8

clinic, patients allegedly received a range of

9

health care services which were medically

10

unnecessary including physical therapy,

11

acupuncture, chiropractic treatment, biofeedback,

12

psychotherapy and dental care.

13

alleged that in addition to providing unwarranted

14

treatment, the clinic fraudulently billed no-fault

15

carriers for services that were never provided.

16

The case also involved steerers who allegedly paid

17

patients to attend the clinic or promised patients

18

they would receive lucrative financial settlements

19

from bodily injury claims.

20

defendants have pleaded guilty, eleven are awaiting

21

trial.

22

The indictment

To date, nine

In a different type of case

23

brought in 2004, 23 defendants were charged with

24

operating two separate auto insurance fraud rings

Associated Reporters Int'l., Inc.
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2

in Brooklyn and Queens and submitting more than

3

$350,000 in fraudulent personal injury claims to

4

insurance carriers.

5

New York City Correction officers, staged car

6

accidents and then submitted phony bills to

7

insurance carriers for claimed injuries.

8

defendants received thousands of dollars in bodily

9

injury settlements paid out by carriers

The defendants, including two

Several

10

representing the at fault drivers in the staged

11

accidents.

12

the defendants, one is a fugitive.

Convictions were obtained against 22 of

_13

In late 2004, in another

14

prosecution involving staged accidents, 32

15

individuals were charged in the Bronx with

16

sUbmitting phony no-fault claims to 13 different

17

carriers.

18

to have employed two different scenarios to stage

19

accidents.

20

cars would intentionally crash into one another.

21

In the second the driver of a car would cause an

22

accident with an unsuspecting driver, frequently a

23

taxi or livery cab driver, and the occupants of the

24

car were then directed to no-fault clinics in the

In this ring the defendants were alleged

In one scenario, the drivers of two

)
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2

Bronx for treatment of their injuries.

3

twenty-five of those charged have pleaded guilty,

4

seven cases are pending.

To date,

Last month the grand jury in

5
6

Queens indicted eight individuals in one law firm

7

for enterprise corruption.

8

two medical doctors, a personal injury attorney and

9

his law firm, and the owners of three Queens

The defendants included

10

medical clinics who submitted false bodily injury

11

claims.
In addition to charges of

12
13

enterprise corruption, which is a B felony, money

14

laundering and grand larceny, a civil enforcement

15

action, has been instituted against the defendants

16

seeking the forfeiture of over $2.2 million in

17

illegally obtained proceeds.

18

eventual recovery of that amount, our office

19

obtained a court order freezing assets of the

20

defendants, including their bank accounts and real

21

property.

22

To facilitate

In Orange County this year 25

23

people were convicted for their roles in operating

24

stolen vehicle ring.

)

The defendants were convicted
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2

of crimes relating to the theft of vehicles,

3

switching of vehicle VINs, falsely reporting that

4

vehicles had been stolen and collecting insurance

5

proceeds based on false representations of losses.

6

We've also prosecuted defendants

7

who stole luxury cars by assuming the identity of

8

people who had left the country, billed for

9

ambulette trips when, in fact, no transport or less

10

expensive private car transport was provided,

11

falsely claimed to have provided biofeedback

12

therapy and psychological testing and impersonated

13,

attorneys.

14

complex and ever-evolving and require labor

15

intensive investigations.

16

The schemes are widespread, diverse,

In addition to obtaining criminal

17

convictions and enhancing public safety, we also

18

have obtained almost $1.3 million in court-ordered

19

judgments and fines, forfeiture and restitution and

20

recovered vehicles worth over $1 million.

21

But equally important has been a

22

concrete benefit for consumers.

The Insurance

23

Department announced yesterday that as a result of

24

anti-fraud efforts it has been able to negotiate

J
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2

rate reductions estimated to save New York policy

3

holders more than $400 million in 2005.
Our accomplishments demonstrate

4
5

that the Auto Insurance Fraud suballocation budget

6

for 2005-06 of $5.03 million and the 50 positions

7

it supports, including ten attorneys, 23

8

investigators, eight auditors, six analysts and

9

three support staff has been a wise investment for

10

New York's auto insurance policy holders.

11

important to note that throughout its existence,

12

A.I,F.U. has received tremendous support and

13

assistance from the State Insurance Department, the

14

state police, the Fraud Accident Investigations

15

Squad of the New York City Police Department and

16

other law enforcement agencies.

17

aided as well by the numerous valuable referrals

18

from insurance carriers Special Investigation Units

19

and assistance from the National Insurance Crime

20

Bureau.

21

And it's

Our efforts were

Our second Insurance Department

22

suballocation came into effect this year and

23

supports the continuing work of our Investment

24

Protection and Criminal Prosecution Bureaus in the

,)
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2

investigation of steering, bid-rigging and other

3

fraudulent practices among brokers and carriers in

4

the insurance industry.
The investigations began in early

5
6

2004, with a review of commercial insurance

7

brokers' receipt of contingent commissions.

8

revealed a widespread practice of brokers steering

9

customers to insurers from which they received

10

undisclosed commissions in violation of their

11

fiduciary obligation to their customers, as well as

12

a bid-rigging -- a bid-rigging cartel involving the

13

largest of the brokers, Marsh & McLennan Company

14

and several leading property and casualty insurers.

15

In October 2004, the office brought suit against

16

Marsh and simultaneously announced guilty pleas by

17

three insurance company executives.

18

brought suit, excuse me, in 2004, against U.L.R., a

19

major consultant in the field of employee benefit

20

insurance projects for deceptive and fraudulent

21

practices.

22

They

We also

During the first quarter of 2005,

23

the office reached agreements with the three

24

largest brokers in the United States, Marsh, Aeon
Associated Reporters Int'l.. Inc.
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Corporation and Willis Group.

3

provide refunds to policy holders totaling

4

approximately $1.1 billion.

5

far-reaching business reforms including a ban on

6

contingent commissions that will benefit consumers

7

by bringing brokers incentives into line with

8

policy holders interests and increasing the

9

transparency of broker compensation dollars.

10

The agreements will

They also entail

Our investigation of the

11

insurance industry has expanded to a review

12

so-called finite insurance products used to

13

manipulate the financial reports of public

14

companies as a possible violation of New York's

15

Martin Act.

16

the office filed a legal proceeding against the

17

American.International Group in June of this year,

18

alleging that A.I.G. and its senior executives had

19

engaged in a number of violations of New York State

20

law involving fraudulent financial reporting and

21

under-reporting of workers' comp premiums to avoid

22

payment of taxes and assessments in New York and

23

elsewhere.

24

A.I.G. is likely.

In part as a result of this review,

A settlement of all claims against

)

We continue to investigate other
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2

insurers as well with regard to finite insurance.

3

Our investigation of contingent

4

commissions, bid-rigging, and steering also

5

continues.

6

insurance carriers and Marsh have pleaded guilty to

7

criminal charges, and in September a New York

8

County grand jury returned a 37 count indictment

9

against eight former Marsh executives for their

To date 17 more employees of four

10

participation in scheme to defraud, bid-rigging and

11

grand larceny.

12

In the civil area we're

13

continuing to review practices of carriers in the

14

excess casualty and employee benefit lines of

15

insurance and have broadened our review of

16

insurance brokers and agents that accept contingent

17

commissions.

18

those investigations are likely and will result in

19

further monetary benefits to policy holders and

20

business practice reforms.

21

Additional settlements arising out of

The impact of our lawsuits,

22

prosecutions and continuing investigations to date

23

far exceeds the $3 million suballocation that

24

supports the efforts of six attorneys, six

.'
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2

investigators and six support staff whose efforts

3

we expect will continue to provide substantial

4

benefit for insurance policy holders into the

5

future.

6

The Department of Law" s

7

successful use of these suballocations provides a

8

tangible benefit to New Yorkers and we would

9

greatly appreciate your continued support for this

10

funding.

11

Thank you.

12

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

Thank you,

13

Kathy.

14

testimony from the three agencies that were

15

represented before because I'm not questioning the

16

benefi ts of the money, it's the nexus
MS. BENNETT:

17

18
19

I appreciate the testimony as I did the

Okay.

I appreciate

that.
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

-- it's the

20

nexus to insurance consumers that concerns me.

21

my expectation is at least as far as the Attorney

22

General's investigation of the shenanigans going on

23

with the brokers and the bid-riggers and the

24

insurance industry is those investigations arguably
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2

would have been undertaken with or without the

3

suballocation as part of your ongoing

4

responsibilities to protect the people of New York

5

from fraud and abuse.

6

So, I guess I just -- this is a

7

hard question for you because, you know, we've

8

chosen. the administration has chosen to provide

9

these resources in lieu of money out of the general

10

budget to do the work that you've done.

11

in your budget requests you don't make -- you don't

12

break out where the money comes from, you are

13

concerned with the money the agency receives as

14

opposed to sources?
MS. BENNETT:

15

I gather

Well. I think when

16

we work with D.O.B. I mean it is styled as a

17

suballocation. these funds.
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

18

It's not

19

linked in any way. you don't get to retain the

20

penalties that you

21

MS. BENNETT:

22

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

23

assessed?

No.
-- that are

Those go into the general fund?

)

24

MS. BENNETT:
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go into the general fund, but I mean a lot of what

3

we've been able to achieve, you know, sort of flows

4

back to insurers.
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

5

6

and --

7

MS. BENNETT:

8

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

9

Well, it does,

Yeah.

another it goes back to insurers.

one way or
I suspect that

10

most of

those benefits don't necessarily go to the

11

people that buy insurance as opposed to insurance

12

company policy holders and executives who seem to

13

do well in almost any situation and that is part of

14

this flow-through which isn't your agency's

15

responsibility except to document the work you do

16

with the money that you receive as opposed to being

17

able to assume that the savings are then, you know,

18

somehow reflected in policy holders premiums.

19

Department's announcement in 2005, I think is

20

welcome.

21

obviously is appreciated.

22

taken this long with the changes that they have

23

undertaken with their own rules and regulations and

24

the laws that we've passed to help them carry out

The

$400 million is a lot of savings which
I'm surprised that it's
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their mission to have that reflected.

3

this is part of my ongoing focus --

4

MS. BENNETT:

5

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

And again

Right.
on the

6

Insurance

7

Department and their aggressiveness in looking

8

after the consumers interests.

9

trade-off between those 70 million, 67 million

But I guess this

10

dollars, whatever the amount is of which the

11

allocation for your agency's a relatively small

12

part--

13

MS. BENNETT:

Right.

14

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

there's no

15

question in my mind.

We had another hearing on

16

part of this a little while ago, but the agency

17

returns -- makes a good return on the monies that

18

are invested by the public and in this case it's by

19

the premium by the policy holders.

20

way, I guess -- do you ever document that somehow

21

this information when it's passed along to the

22

Insurance Department is done in any way that they

23

can factor that into the impact on premiums?

24

just announced the settlements of your cases
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2

outcomes of your prosecutions.

3

MS. BENNETT:

4

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

Uh-huh.
And that

5

information is then either the check is handed over

6

if there's a penalty or fine to the budget office

7

or to the comptroller, I guess, whoever

8

MS. BENNETT:

9

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

10

that.

11

of --

Right.

But that's the extent of your documentation

12

MS. BENNETT:

13

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

14

elects

Well
-- the impact

of the activities that you take?
MS. BENNETT:

15

You know, it

16

depends on the case.

I mean certainly in some of

17

our settlement documents with insurance companies,

18

you know, there are specific requirements that they

19

have to meet.

20

have a specific one in mind.

21

insurance it's more diffused.

22

out there and putting people in jail and asking for

23

asset forfeiture we're assuming that we have a

24

deterrence effect on what's going on.

I mean I'm not -- you know, if you
I mean on the auto
You know, by being

i
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2

you know, the Insurance Department has statistics

3

that show that anti-fraud efforts have been

4

successful, both you know, ours at the A.G. 's

5

office and other things that they've done and

6

that's led to rate reduction.

7

the -- you know, in the Investment Protection

S

Bureau settlements there are often requirements and

9

I'd be glad to get those to you if you want them.

10
11

So -- but I mean in

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:
refunds of --

12

MS. BENNETT:

13

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

14

For past

Right.
monies that

were inappropriately paid for insurance premiums?

15

MS. BENNETT:

Right.

16

ASSEMBLYMEMBER BARCLAY:

Thank

17

you for your testimony.

Just a quick question.

18

there any programs in the A.G. 's office where --

19

you've mentioned two here that are directly linked

20

to insurance or insurance fraud or something that

21

is not paid through suballocations outside of --

22

you know, I know you have a general prosecutorial

23

obligation. but is there any direct program that's

24

paid by the A.G.'s office?

,i
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MS. BENNETT:

No.

I mean I

3

suppose the Medicaid fraud program has some effect

4

on, you know, health care more generally, but these

5

are really the two main ones that deal with

6

insurance.

7

certainly if there are consumer complaints about

8

insurance companies we accept them in our Consumer

I mean we do, you know, accept

·9

Fraud's Bureau.

10

programs.

But these are our two main

11

ASSEMBLYMEMBER BARCLAY:

12

MS. BENNETT:

13

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

Thanks.

You're welcome.
Just let me

14

you also deal with the banking industry.

15

receive any money in suballocations from the

16

Banking Department for --

17

MS. BENNETT:

18

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

19

Do you

No.
-- for your

activities?

20

MS. BENNETT:

No.

21

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

22

MS. BENNETT:

You don't?

Not that I know of.

23

I mean I can check, but nothing comes to mind.

24

I'll get back to you --.

j
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CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

Bank customers

3

that benefit from your activities get a free ride

4

as far as fees and other kinds of expenses that

5

might be passed along to them whereas the insurance

6

consumers are asked to pick up a portion of the

7

overall tab?

B
9

MS. BENNETT.:

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

MS. BENNETT:

- - no Banking

Department suballocation comes to mind offhand.

14
15

I'm not aware

of any either.

12
13.

I will check

on that, but I don't

10
11

Yeah.

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

Thank you.

Thank you very much.
MS. BENNETT:

16

Thank you.

17
1B
19

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

President of New York Health Plan Association.

20

/

Paul Macielak,

MR. PAUL MACIELAK,PRESIDENT, NEW

21

YORK HEALTH PLAN ASSOCIATION:

Assemblyman Grannis,

22

Assemblyman Barclay, I appreciate the opportunity

23

to testify.

24

which I'll just try and summarize and hit a few

I've submitted a written statement
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So, the Health Plan Association

3
4

represents a number of the health plan national,

5

regional, P.H.S.P. managed long-term care plans in

6

the state.

7

bi-plans and a diverse population is therefore

8

served.

9

We offer a number of multi-products,

What I'd like to go on the record

10

as saying is that at least the Health Plan

11

Association has opposed in the past, opposes today,

12

will oppose in the future 332 suballocations.

13

question the legal basis for a 332 suballocation

14

that within the four corners of the statute there

15

is no mention of suballocation other than the term

16

the indirect service to be provided.

17

there's been a lot of discussion here today about a

18

nexus I think the term nexus needs to be better

19

defined or else you'll end up in the situation I

20

think you alluded to in both cases.

21

We

And while

I mean all of the Health

22

Department's budget could conceivably have an

23

impact on insurance, health insurance rates and

24

could conceivably all be paid through a 332

)
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suballocation.

3

could be paying for all the bridge and road

4

construction in the state because that would

5

increase traffic safety and that likewise would

6

increase health safety and/or P&C safety as well.

7

So, the definition of a nexus needs to be more

8

strongly defined if there is to be a suballocation.

9

I carry that logic forward, we

Something that has not been

10

discussed, but is critical in the discussion, is

11

that the 332 suballocation is inequitable and

12.

unfair because it imposes this tax on a narrow base

13

of premium.

14

insured plans in the state and is only applied to

15

New Yor·k domicile insurers.

16

interested to hear, and I thought it was ironic,

17

the reference by the Insurance Department that the

18

Banking Department's Holocaust Claims Processing of

19

insurance claims for European company policies that

20

is paid for on the backs of New York domiciled

21

insurers.

22

It does not include any of the self

That's why I was

Similarly, the reference to the

23

Attorney General's broker practices inquiries

24

includes in many cases some self insured plans
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2

which don't contribute to the suballocations.

It

3

creates an incentive to self insure to avoid this

4

particular assessment or tax.

5

the P&C or life industry, but you clearly know.

6

Assemblyman Grannis, that the health plans pay a

7

lot of money in terms of HCRA surcharges, well over

8

a billion dollars today.

9

HCRA surcharge almost as the cake and the 332

I'm not speaking for

I'd like to think of that

10

suballocation's almost like a frosting and

11

sprinkles.

12

know, $63 million in suballocations in the

13

Insurance Department split amongst P&C Life and

14

Health industry, whereas in the HCRA arena we're

15

paying over a billion dollars.

16

created some of the difficulty that health plans

17

have had in opposing some of the suballocations.

18

We're out fighting 50 and 60 million dollars

19

increases in HCRA surcharges and then sort of

20

buried within the budgets another 15,20 million in

21

terms of 332 suballocation.

Because we're talking here about, you

And that has

22

We've spent a lot of time talking

23

about the D.O.I. increased use of suballocation and

24

the Comptroller's audit. I think. highlights part
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2

of the problem in terms of its increased use.

And

3

from 2003 to 2004, the audit report of the

4

Comptroller indicates that the D.O.I. budget went

5

up approximately 22 million dollars.

6

amount, 20 million was attributable

7

suballocation.

8

suballocation budget increase, I mean the D.O.I.

9

budget would have been basically a status quo

Of that
to

So, but for an increased

10

equation.

And it's our position that if it's

11

really to pay for public goods, public health, then

12

all New Yorkers ought to contribute to that payment

13

and there ought to be a general fund payment and

14

allocation.

15

Payment for programs for cancer

16

screening for the uninsured is in our mind a public

17

health function.

18

clearly not bad, but it doesn't have a direct tie

19

and/or service to those that are paying this

20

increased assessment.

That·s not necessarily bad.

It's

21

Finally, the calculation of the

22

332 assessment, at least for health plans, it's a

23

mystery.

24

on it the fact that if you don't pay in the first

plans get a quarterly invoice which has

!
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month there's a five percent penalty and you get a

3

one percent interest tacked on every month

4

thereafter.

5

There is no information provided to the health

6

plans about what the premium is and/or by line of

7

business that's used to calculate that plan's

8

numerator.

9

no Medicaid, Medicare, Family Health Plus or CHIP

The calculation is not verifiable.

There are exclusions by law.

There's

10

assessment that's included in this calculation.

11

But there's no data provided back to the plan to

12

ensure that the data on which they're being

13

assessed is accurately calculated.

14

And I'd like to point out that

15

the Health plan Association spent two years

16

fighting to get the Medicaid lives and premium

17

excluded from the 332 assessment as the P.H.S.P.

18

premiums and lives were not being taxed and we

19

wanted that same, you know. equity for the

20

commercial plans that were offering Medicaid

21

Managed Care as well.

22

be more disclosure and transparency in the

23

calculation of the overall assessment, let alone as

24

it applies to suballocation.

At a minimum there ought to
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2

I would just conclude by saying

3

that we appreciate your shedding some light on this

4

shadowy tax.

5

question the legal authority of imposing

6

suballocations, particularly in terms of defining

7

the nexus.

8

almost some sort of a direct benefit back to those

9

paying for that assessment for it to be a

We oppose all 332 suballocations.

And I would argue that we need to have

10

legitimate nexus.

11

dialogue between the insurance industry, certainly

12

from the health plan side, and the Insurance

13

Department in terms of these suballocations and

14

that, I think, would be something critical and key

15

to determining whether there is a cost and benefit

16

back to the payers of the particular assessment.

17

There has been no discourse or

The assessment is regressive in

18

terms of the New York insurance industry and it

19

does increase premiums for your constituents.

20

would urge transfer of the suballocations back to

21

the general fund.

22

,!

We

We

Thank you.
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

Let me just --

23

just a couple of questions raised by your statement

24

here.

You question the legality of these
Associated Reporters Int'l., Inc.
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suballocations.

3

Health Plan Association?

5

Has that ever been tested by the

MR. MACIELAK:

4

12-20~2005

Not to my

knowledge, no.
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

6

And to the

7

extent that you've had these concerns have you

8

communicated these in writing to the administration

9

about this process of dunning your members for

10

MR. MACIELAK:

11

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

12

MR. MACIELAK:

13

budget basis as part of our advocacy have opposed

14

the 332 allocations and communicated that with

15

written correspondence and verbally as well.

16

We have --- this?
on an annual

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

To the

17

administration or just to our Joint Physical

18

Committees?

19
20
21
22
23

24

MR. MACIELAK:

The Joint Physical

Committees and the budget, et cetera.
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

Maybe you

could just probably get --.
MR. MACIELAK:

The problem as I

indicated before, though, is we end up in the case
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of fighting, you know, large HeRA surcharge

3

increases --

4

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

5

MR. MACIELAK:

6

I understand.
while these,

you know, pale next to it.

7

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

And were you

8

here when the -- I guess both the Health Department

9

and the Insurance Department were touting the

10

consumer benefits of the money spent on

11

suballocations related to health care, whether it's

12

the Forge Proof Prescriptions, certification, I

13

mean the rest of the things that there are

14

sub-allocated funds for that they actually are

15

reflected in cost savings for those that pay those

16

premiums?

17

MR. MACIELAK:

I think it would

18

be generally perceived that the programs are so

19

broad as to benefit all New Yorkers that it would

20

be tenuous and I don't think you would find plan

21

actuaries allocating any concrete savings from

22

these efforts directly back to individual

23

prescribers and that is in large measure based on

24

the fact of, you know, many of the programs,

}
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2

certainly in the health arena, apply to the

3

uninsured, the self insured, non-domiciled insurers

4

as well.

5

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

And just

6

finally, you talked about trying to find out the

7

basis of these calculations and the premium basis

8

on which they're computed.

9

something that you've asked the -- I'm not even

10
11

Again, has that been

sure who you ask here, the Department --?
MR. MACIELAK:

We have had some

12

dialogue in terms of trying to get more

13

information, but have not had any formal -- we

14

haven't made any formal request or had any formal

15

meetings with D.O.I. to try and hammer out let's

16

say a process going forward in terms of trying to

17

get more of that data.

18

ASSEMBLYMEMBER BARCLAY:

19

for your testimony.

20

programs that you guys support?

21

MR. MACIELAK:

Thanks

Are there any suballocation

No.

We would take

22

the position that if we engaged in a dialogue maybe

23

with the Department and there was an agreement

24

worked out in terms of what the costs were and what

,I
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2

the benefits were and there was going to be clear

3

benefit back to those paying the assessment, then

4

it is conceivable.

5

example, while there's been a lot of talk about the

6

Forge Proof Prescription, you know. it clearly has

7

been our position that the dollar allocation that's

8

allegedly going to inure to the benefit of the

9

commercial insurance market we don't subscribe to

And I would point out as an

10

we don't believe that that is at all based on fact

11.

and/or accurate and haven't really had any great

12

success in

13

that was ever calculated.

getting what the basis of it is or how

ASSEMBLYMEMBER BARCLAY:

14

Would

15

you mind giving my office your position paper on

16

this 332, what you have for a legislative -

17

MR. MACIELAK:

18

ASSEMBLYMEMBER BARCLAY:

19

motion paper?
MR. MACIELAK:

20
21

Oh sure.

I thought we

actually gave copies to --

22

ASSEMBLYMEMBER BARCLAY:

23

MR. MACIELAK:

24

clerks.

Great.

-- I think the

All right.
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2

ASSEMBLYMEMBER BARCLAY:

3

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

4

statement.

6

We have your

Actually I think --.
ASSEMBLYMEMBER BARCLAY:

5

Do you

have a legislative, you know, position paper --

7

MR. MACIELAK:

8

ASSEMBLYMEMBER BARCLAY:

9

Good.

Okay.

you can provide during the budget --?

10

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

"leah.
that

Thanks.
And just let

11

me on the -- let me come back to the prescription

12

pads.

13

with producing those, and your position would be to

14

have your network providers pick up the tab if in

15

fact it was not paid for with some kind of a public

16

subsidy that is back-billed through your --

17

members?

Assuming that there are costs associated

18

MR. MACIELAK:

19

Proof Prescription Program, I mean that was some

20

policy decision by I don't know who to have it, you

21

know, not paid for by the physician community, but

22

rather be paid through this suballocation

23

component.

24

don't, you know, believe there is a basis in it for

!

Well, the Forge

The savings attributable to it we
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2

the commercial carriers.

3

to the Medicaid Program which has not had any such

4

system in place and any discussion about

5

E-prescribing or anything along that line is not to

6

my knowledge looked to be funded at all from this

7

suballocation.

8

discussion, totally separate funding table.

9

There is savings clearly

That is a totally separate

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

My expectation

10

is that you will be getting another opportunity

11

within a month to comment on a continuation of

12

these suballocation decisions because I don't see

13

or get the hint that anybody is going to make any

14

dramatic decisions that reduce suballocations.

15

guess is there may be more rather than less based

16

on the norm over the last decade.

17

continue to discuss with you some of these

18

transparency issues.

19

legitimate concern, how the assessments are

20

calculated and the basis they're calculated on I

21

think is a legitimate concern.

22

overall focus is legitimate too, but I guess we're

23

going to have less luck in the near future on the

24

relieving your plan members of these burdens of

My

So, we will

I think that's a perfectly

I think your

!
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absorbing these added costs.

3

the concerns.

But I certainly share

4

Thank you, Paul.

5

MR. MACIEL.AK:

6

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

7

Thank you.
NYPIRG, Blair

Horner and Russ -- oh, Blair.

8

Blair, we understand you're here

9

because you're panicked over the Transit strike in

10

New York and didn't feel like walking so you stayed

11

here instead of going down to

12

MR. BLAIR HORNER, LEGISLATIVE

13

COUNSEL, NEW YORK PUBLIC INTEREST.

14

would have taken me quite a while to get to New

15

York today.
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

16
17

GROUP:

It

To get to New

York?

18

MR. HORNER:

Good afternoon.

My

19

name is Blair Horner, I'm NYPIRG's Legislative

20

Director.

21

appreciating the interest shown by the committee on

22

this issue.

23

I'll refer to it with kind of just my overall

24

comments.

And I just want to start off by

I'm not going to read my testimony.

)
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2

I'd also like to thank you not

3

only for holding the hearing, but for providing an

4

opportunity to take a fresh look at this program.

5

I'm just fascinated by the testimony given so far

6

and the programs themselves.

7

like to thank you, the Committee, and particularly

8

you, Pete, for the work you've done on behalf of

9

insurance consumers over the years.

And in addition we'd

Certainly from our view the

10
11

Insurance Department has a big job.

12

has to ensure the soundness of the insurance

13

industry, it must ensure the consumers are educated

14

and protected from the unscrupulous members of that

15

industry.

16

that complex mission must be appropriate to the

17

overall mission of the Department.

18

we think, should be only used when it's clear that

19

some outside agency has particular expertise that's

20

lacking within the Department and that such

21

expertise is necessary to the mission of the

22

Department.

23

It not only

Clearly any diversion of resources from

Suballocations,

The insurance industry benefits

i

24

from measures that help reduce injuries and
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2

property losses.

It means that they don't have to

3

pay claims.

4

they're spared the trauma of filing the claim and

5

the result of the injury or the loss themselves.

6

In those circumstances it's clear that there may be

7

other agencies with the ability to help reduce

8

losses.

9

financial system, it make sense to sub-allocate

It also helps New Yorkers since

Moreover, in an increasingly complex

10

resources to help bolster agencies enforcement

11

activities, injury prevention and reduction and

12

consumer advocacy.

13

that such activities enhance the mission of the

14

Department.

15

Again, the standard should be

Now, the suballocations

16

identified in the hearing notice could conceivably

17

meet these tests, however, we don't know of any big

18

picture document that explains why these particular

19

programs are funded when others are not.

20

example, there's a logic to diverting resources

21

from the Insurance Department to the Health

22

Department to pay for -- to help in the quote

23

"development of inpatient hospital rates for

24

insurance payments" unquote.

For

)
But should that
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2

program be funded ahead of the Health Department's

3

program to develop risk adjusted hospital report

4

cards which could help significantly reduce medical

5

errors?

6

insurance premiums roughly $2 billion annually to

7

treat hospital patients injured by medical

8

mistakes.

9

in 1996 Health Care Reform Act legislation have

New Yorkers pay largely through health

Yet the hospital report cards mandated

10

still not been produced and part of the reason

11

that's been argued is a lack of resources.
So, a big picture debate on these

12
13

suballocations would be helpful, particularly if

14

that debate disclosed the criteria that the

15

administration used for identifying programs

16

eligible for Insurance Department funding, and as

17

you mentioned earlier, the matrix for how they

18

measure success.

19

Now, in addition, there needs to

20

be a debate over what doesn't get funded in the

21

Department and we would urge that some resources be

22

looked at in terms of providing more hearings on

23

insurance proposed premium increases, as well in

24

airing of other issues such as proposed mergers.
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2

Now, in the testimony we go

3

through three different areas that we've looked at

4

where we've had some experience with the

5

suballocations or lack thereof.

6

fire safety which you talked about extensively

7

already.

8

done a good job.

9

testimony on how the reporting could be improved.

10

The first is on

And we think the Department of State's
We have some suggestions in our

In the area of the community

11

health and managed care oversight we specifically

12

talk about the lead poisoning issues and the need

13

for improving that program.

14

And then on auto insurance we

15

talk about really in our testimony about a program

16

that doesn't get funded by the State Insurance

17

Department which is an effort to make it easier for

18

consumers to comparison shop for auto insurance.

19

Now, as you know, there is an auto insurance

20

consumer guide which supposedly helps people shop

21

for auto insurance premiums, but you have to be of

22

the exact age, of the exact car and have the exact

23

experience to comparison shop.

24

in the testimony on pages four and five we did a
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2

comparison for the adult male age 35 and we looked

3

at the disparities.

4

was to show that for the exact same premiums for

5

the exact same drivers there are big disparities.

6

Now, the reason we did that

Then later on in the testimony we

7

talk specifically about programs that other states

8

have done, particularly California, to help make it

9

easier for consumers to comparison shop.

Our point

10

in this part of the testimony is not so much to

11.

talk about suballocations, per se, but if the

12

Department has this money available to spend on

13

suballocations we argue that there should be at

14

least an examination of how the Department could do

15

a better job educating consumers on auto insurance

16

premiums.

17

testimony we printed out a copy of the website in

18

California which shows how specific you can be in

19

California to get premium information.

20

quote.

21

do that in California, but in California, as you

22

can see, it is far more extensive than the

23

information provided in New York State.

24

And you can see on page seven of our

Not a

It's not an exact quote because they can't

So, we would urge that the
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2

Committee request that the Department present the

3

big picture.

4

today, but I didn't hear the answer to the big

5

picture question.

6

chosen for funding and others do not.

7

view that the Department's resources could do more

8

to help reduce injuries and property losses and

9

thus help the industry's bottom line as well as

I started to have that conversation

And for how certain programs get
It's our

10

consumers lives and wallets.

Moreover, such a

11

discussion may help lead to measures that increase

12

both consumer protection and consumer education in

13

the state.

14

Those are my -- our view.

15

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

16

MR. HORNER:

Certainly

And we're glad to

17

see that you made it out of the city despite the

18

strike.
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

19

I certainly

20

agree with the concern on the focus of the big

21

picture.

22

were here are not in a position to present the big

23

picture and the one that chose not to appear today

24

is really the fabricator of the big picture because

The problem is that the agencies that
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there the decisions are made in the Division of the

3

Budget.

4

support for programs that have been on the books

5

for a long time through suballocations the

6

decisions, while facilitated by the agencies come

7

primarily from the Division of the Budget that is

8

looking for ways to adjust the big picture as far

9

as the budget that they present each year and

And I would guess other than continuing

10

that's where this concept comes from.

U,

intend to pursue that with them to find out if we

12

can get a construct on how decisions are made for

13

these suballocations.

14

And we

On the issue of the auto measures

15

1 know you've had discussions on this, at least in

16

some sectors with the Department.

17

a clue from the Department that they are prepared

18

to look at these suggestions for expanding the

19

consumer protections that they provide for --?

20

MR. HORNER:

Have you gotten

We have not yet

21

heard anything positive about that.

You know,

22

we -- and it's

23

boxing to some extent to get answers on some of our

24

proposals, but in this one 1 think the idea that

hard to -- it's almost shadow

j
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other states can do it is really going to come down

3

to a question of whether or not the Department

4

feels enough pressure to improve their -- I mean

5

this is one thing, I mean the consumer guide that

6

exists now isn't so bad compared to a lot of other

7

states, but no one -- by guess is if you walked up

8

and down Washington Avenue after the hearing and

9

asked everybody you met did you know there was an

10

auto insurance consumer guide the answer would be

11

universally no.

12

knows it exists and I think once they know it

13

exists and they see what other states do, they're

14

going to feel like something has to be done.

15

it's a public pressure issue I think for the

16

Department similar to this hearing today.

17

you're bringing to light these suballocations, I

18

don't think anybody really, you know, other than

19

apparently Paul Macielak, had really thought about

20

it to have a firmly held view enough.

21

So, part of the problem is nobody

So,

I mean

And so I think it's important

22

that these programs that the Department puts

23

together be held up to a transparent public

24

discussion on whether or not they work.

j
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2

going to spend money on a consumer guide we should

3

have one that the public uses.

4

have a suballocation system in place I think it has

5

to meet some criteria as to what it's being used

6

for as compared to not just a cash cow to fund

7

programs that they can't figure out how else to

8

fund the money on,
Now, and I heard, you know, well,

9
lO-

and all of these other guys were up here before and

II

they made arguments as to why there is a

12

connection, but as you mentioned, you could make a

13

connection to everything.

14

earlier, you could argue safer highways.

15

argue more police, you could argue better teachers,

16

you know, should be funded through suballocations

17

because, you know, people would be more educated I

18

guess.

19

create the construct I think is critically

20

important and to beginning the public debate on how

21

this program really should work or have one at all.

22
)

If we're going to

Even as Paul mentioned
You could

So, where they draw the line and how they

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

I'm a little

23

worried that the budget is going to reflect big

24

jumps in the suballocations and they're going to be
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2

attributable to suggestions they got from this

3

hearing.

4

MR. HORNER:

5

hope that they're good ideas.

Well, we can only

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

6

I don't think

7

any of

them are necessarily bad ideas, it's this

8

nexus that has been troubling to me for a while.

9

I don't have any questions.

10

ASSEMBLYMEMBER BARCLAY:

Thanks

11

for testifying.

Just quickly so I understand what

12

your testimony -

I apologize if I got this wrong,

13

you don't necessarily have anything against the

14

suballocations, it's maybe some of the priorities

15

that they've chose to use suballocations for versus

16

some of the programs that you're articulating in

17

your testimony?

18

MR. HORNER:

19

I mean it's hard to have a strong opinion on a

20

program that you don't know how it really works.

21

mean if it is what it appears to be anyway, just a

22

program where well, we need to have money for this

23

particular program and we're going to just take it

24

out of this Insurance Department's suballocation
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2

and there's no rhyme or reason for why it's done

3

other than it's easy to do, then it doesn't make

4

any sense to do it that way.

5

should deserve -- deserves an explanation on a

6

program that spends millions of dollars, why it is

7

doing it the way it is, on everything including

8

this,

I mean the public

So, we don't have a philosophic

9
10

objection if the Insurance Department and the

11

administration makes an argument that let's say for

12

the Attorney General's case, that the Attorney

13

General is uniquely equipped to enforce the law in

14

a way that the Insurance Department is not,

15

therefore we're going to give some money to them to

16

make it happen,

17

fit into a big picture that's defensible,

18

the absence of that.

19

feeling on it.

20

company executive, like Paul was up here before, I

21

might have a different kind of feeling about it,

22

but without knowing what it is, the mission, you

23

know, what are you trying to accomplish, how we

24

choose what's in and what's out, how do we know

Well,

that's rational and if it
But it's

It's hard to have a strong

I guess maybe if I was an insurance
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that the program's a success and how do we define

3

success?

4

for example.

5

don't think there's a good answer to it.

6

knowing that it's hard to say yes, it should

7

happen, or no,' it should not.

Are these being used to reduce premiums,

8

9

I think that's a good" question.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER BARCLAY:

I

Without

So,

you're looking at it more going in the future,

10

you're not saying any of these current

11

suballocations are improper, there is an improper

12

nexus to their insurance?
MR. HORNER:

13

We haven't studied

14

the issue well enough to say what should or should

15

not be funded.

16

inappropriate of us to say that.

17

I think, feel most comfortable expressing our views

18

on this is that we think that there should be a

19

process by how this thing works, how this program

20

works, that's accountable and transparent so that

21

you don't have to have a hearing like this in the

22

future and the public knows if they're getting any

23

bang for their insurance premium buck.

24

It would be, you know,
I think where we,

ASSEMBLYMEMBER BARCLAY:
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frankly, you know, this is somewhat new to me, but

3

at the same time I haven't seen any indication that

4

there's been any kind of abuse of the nexus to

5

insurance.

6

there's a pretty solid basis to, you know, maybe

7

fund these two suballocations.

8

what you're saying that maybe in the future we want

9

to look at this and make sure that we don't go too

It looks like all these programs

Now, I agree with

10

far afield of the nexus between the insurance.

11

I guess that would be

12

MR. HORNER:

So,

Well, and what are

13

the priorities.

I mean, again, you could probably

14

make an argument on a nexus depending on how you

15·

defined it for almost anything.

16

that's most important. what are we really trying to

17

do -- what is this state really trying to do with

18

this program?

19

injuries in an aggressive way and. curtail fraud and

20

educate the public, I think those are all worthy

21

goals.

22

a rational way to achieve those goals, then I think

23

it's a defensible program.

24

into it frankly, but as I mentioned in the

So, what is it

If it's really trying to reduce

And the allocation of the money is done in

And these may all fit
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2

testimony, there are other big programs you could

3

make a pretty good argument, for example, reducing

4

medical errors, save billions of dollars, that

5

maybe deserve money too.

6

hard to say yeah, we should fund that or not when

7

you don't really know what it is the administration

8

is trying to do.
ASSEMBLYMEMBER BARCLAY:

9

10

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

Thanks.

Just in

11

closing, without a big picture there's also a big

12

question as to how much insurance consumers can

13

bear and is there a limit on how far this -- I

14

don't know quite how to -- this method of funding

15

essential state programs can go on the backs of

16

insurance consumers before it morphs into a bigger

17

picture where it's got, you know, a lack of

18

fairness as far as the overall state benefit and

19

the public benefit to the program perhaps ought to

20

be -- you know, you could make a case it should be

21

the public tax levy monies that pay for it rather

22

than just
MR. HORNER:

23

/

So, you know, again, it's

24

entirely true.

Well, that's

And I absolutely agree.
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there's no defense for the program other than it's

3

easy to

4

Dillinger, you know, going to the banks because

5

that's where the money is.

6

it really should be coming out of the general fund.

7

If there's a particular reason and a connection

8

that really helps things, you know, we wouldn't

9

have a philosophic objection to that.

you know, it's kind of like, you know,

10

,

If it's only that, then

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

You know, as

11

long as when Dillinger went in if the bank never

12

reported the robbery, I mean who would care?

13

that's the problem here that nobody seems to raise

14

hell about this

15

MR. HORNER:

16

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

And

That's why it's --.
-- and you

17

know, so I think the budgeteers said well, let's

18

just try a little bit more here.

19

that's been the -- this has been ratcheted up over

20

the years.

And you know,

21

MR. HORNER:

22

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

23

That's why the --.
They seem to

have been able to pull off this --

J

MR. HORNER:

24
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2

-- robbery

3

without anybody, you know, reporting it.

4

with some discussion now we can have a better

5

dialogUe on what's involved.

MR. HORNER:

6

7

And we appreciate

this hearing, I think, is a great way to get the

8

CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

9

MR. HORNER:

10

started.

Thank you.
CHAIRMAN GRANNIS:

12

That's it.
everybody.

14

Thanks.

-- discussion

11

13

Maybe

Thank you.

Thank you very much

Thanks for attending.
(The hearing concluded at 12:54

15

p.m.)

16

pwss

17
18
19

20
21
22

23
24
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STATE OF NEW YORK

3

I, Nathan Roberts, do hereby certify that the

4

foregoing was reported by me, in the cause, at

5

the time and place, and in the presence of

6

counsel, as stated in the caption hereto, at

7

Page 1 hereof;

8

transcription, consisting of pages number 1

9

through 113, inclusive, was prepared under my

that the foregoing typewritten

10

supervision and is a true record of all

11

proceedings had at the hearing.

12

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have

13

hereunto subscribed my name, this the 12th day

14

of January, 2006.

15
16
17

~

Nathan Roberts, Reporter

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
Associated Reporters Int'l., Inc.

800.523.7887

12l.lOOOO:!. AII>olIy,NY. - " SumotiIta C'""""""" ... _

800.513.1887

_

~JarL,1Dc.

Page llS

added 6:24 37:22 97:2
9:21 11:24 12: 15
addition
abllity99:7
14:323:1241:2346:8
able 26:627:430:10 31:2
52:269:13
71:12 72:16
38:1672:24 79:3,17
98:6100:19
112:23
additioDllll4:8
22: 18
abreast 28:22
34:1246:766:17 76:17
abseDcelO8:18
address
66:21
absolutely 36:6 111:24
addressed 53:21
absorbing 97:2
37:10
add-ons
abuse 78:5 11 0:4
adjust
104:8
accept76:1683:6,8
adjusted 100:3
accepted 59:5,5
administered
15:20 19:7
aecess 16:20
administration 19:24
acddeat 16:6,13,21,23
31:1878:891:8,17
17:2,8,11,1630:1467:2,6
100:15 108:11 111:7
68:5,2470:2273: 14
28: 18
administrator
accldents67:270:6,11,14
admitted 23:8
70:19
adopted 47:23,24
accompllsb 108:23
adultI02:2
accomplishments 66: 13
adults 15:16
73:4
account34:15 36:7 49:7,12 advance 23:24
adverse 14:19
60:16,18
advisory 19:9
accountability 6: 13
advocacy91:13 99:12
accountable 109:20
accounts 49:5 50:1871:20 Aeoo23:1474:24
afield58:16110:10
accurate 94:11
aftemoon66:797:18
accurately 89: 13
agel01:22102:2
achieve 79:3 110:22
agencies4:14 5:11,12 6:10
Act75:15 100:9
7:228:11 13:1425:2
acting 3:6,87:11,24
32:2233:11 35:15 37:21
action71:15
39:18,2240:21
42:16
actions 10:221:1322:22
59:1873:1677:1499:7
active 57: 19
99:10 103:21 104:6
activities 13:11 36:19
agency
6:13 40:23,24
66:11 81:1483:1984:3
42:10 43:6 47:18 53:22
99:11,13
78:1380:1698:19
activity 66:19 67:13
agency's 5:13 25:579:14
actual 38:20
80:11
actuarially 62: 11
agents76:16
actuaries 36:692:21
aggressive 110:19
acupuncture 69: 11
aggressiveaess 80:7
add44:463:12
ago 37:4 45:21 47:15 57: 10
A

Associated Reporters Int'!.. Inc.

80:16
agree 103:20 110:7 111:24
agreed 31:5
agreemeat22:7 23:793:23
agreemeats 74:23 75:2
apieulturBl 54: 10
ahead60:21 100:2
aided 73: 17
aJn't35:17
airI.ag 100:24
alarm 19:13
AlbaDy 1:5 19:20
Alexander 2:3 4:2
alleged 68:22 69:3,13
70:17
allegedly21:6 69:8,16 94:8
alleging 75: 18
allocated 5: 11 64: 18
allocates 19:10
allocating 92:21
allocation 38:4 47:10 80:11
88:1494:7110:21
allocations 91 :14
alluded 85:20
alterations 13: 10
ambu1ette 72:9
American 75:17
amount4:13 16:2225:9
42:549:461:871:18
80:10 88:6
amounts 5:9
analysts 73:8
andlor86:6 88:1989:6
94:11
angry 55:20
announced 72:23 74: 16
80:24
,
announcement 79: 19
annual 14:18 91:12
annually 13:24100:6
answer 24:2329:2331 :15 ,
39:15103:4 105:10 109:5
,
answers 104:23
anti-fraud 72:2482:3

800.523.7887

12I2IIIlOO5. AIbmy. NY.

- 1 St&1Idiq C<lmmiI!eo

00 _ .

_l!qlorIm 1nt'I..1ne.

Page 116

anybody55:5 56:18 96:13
105:18113:3
anyway 107:21
apologize 107:12
apparent41: 11
apparently 33: 10 Hl5:19
8pIleId 40: 13
appealjng55: 19
appear 103:23
appears 26:10 42:12
.107:21
appUed35:486:14
applies 89:24
apply 93:2
appolnting67:15 .
appredate4:5 47:13 54:19
58:777:9,13,1784:22
90:3113:6
appreclated45:23 79:21
appreciates 66:11
appreciating 97:21
appredation 37:9
appropriate 8:219:933:15
47:2051:398:16
appropriated 46:23
appropriately 10: 16
appropriation 47:553:16
60:1464:10
appropriations 10:20
approved 17:10 21:22
approximately 13:2415:7
15:1416:9,1763:5,20
65:875:488:5
area 57:662:2076:12
101:10
areas 5: 19 33:454:1157:8
101:3
arena 87:14 93:2
arguable 44:6
arguably 77 :24
argue33:1690:7102:13
106:14,15,15
argued 100:11
argument62:4108:11

110:14111:3
arguments 106:11·
argument's 63:17
arisln176:17
arose 46:5
8lTII1lge 6: 19
arraugem.ents 22: 12
array 45:13
arrest 36:9
arrests 67:22
art 13:8
arthritis 11:24
ArtJde 15:562:15
at1k:uIate 36:24
articulating 107: 16
asked26:2327:19,21,23
45:2055:23 84:6 93:9
105:9
asking 81:22
Assembly 1:32:24:3,7
Assemblyman 4:2 28:7
84:21,22 87:6
Assemblymember 2:3,4
58:6,1959:8,2260:3
82:1683:11 93:1894:14
94:18,2295:2,5,8107:10
109:8,24111:9
assessed 49:14 78:23 89:13
assessmeut 49:24 50:24
87:4 88 :20.22 89: 10, 17
89:2390:9,16,1794:3
assessmeuts 4:18,18,21
75:2296:19
asset 81:23
assets 9:20 10:1871:19
assistance 11:1319:16
73:13,19
associated 11:5 24:4 42:3
95:12
Association 3: 12 84: 19,21
85:3,11 89:1591:3
assume 79: 17
assuming72:7 81:23 95:12
attempts 26:18

attend 68:24 69:7,17
atteudaoce 4:6
attending 113:13
attentloas57:21
attest 56: 11
attorney 3: 10 20:11,24
22:7,11,23 25:22 26:22
27:2365:1766:6,8,10,16
67:15,1871:877:21
86:23 108:12,12
attomeys68:22 72:13 73:7
76:24
attributable 45:23 48:23
52:22 55:9 88:695:23
107:2
audit 87 :24 88:3
auditors 73:8
autbority4:10 5:6 90:5
auto 21 :3,10,13,17,22,24
22:233:1936:837:23
44:1755:766:2067:16
67:1769:2473:5,10
81:20101:14,18,19,21
102:15 104:14105:10
automobile 16:1617:24
20:17,18,2221:16,20
available 16:2417:12
102:12
Aveuue 105:8
average 18:16,19,24 22:3
averaged 63:13
avoid 23:19 75:21 87:3
awaiting 69:20
aware 58:17 84:10
A.G 82:4,18,24
A.I.F.U 67:18,2273:12
A.I.G 75:18,24
,
a.ml:4
B
• B2:3 4:2 71:13
• back 29:14 35:12 39:14
40:1843:545:2050:23
50:2460:279:4,983:24

,,

,
"'~-~

Associated Reponers Int'!., Inc.

SOO.523.7887

800.5237887

12120/2005, Albany, :-;V, Assembly Standing Committee an Insurance,

Associated Reporters hRl., lnc

Page 115

added 6:24 37:22 97:2
addition9:21 11:2412:15
abiJity 99: 7
14:323:1241 :2346:8
able 26:627:430:10 31:2
52:269:13 71:12 72:16
38:1672:2479:3,17
98:6100:19
112:23
14:8 22:18
additional
abreast 28:22
34:1246:766:1776:17
absence 108:18
address
66:21
absolutely 36:6 111 :24
addressed
53:21
absorbing97:2
add-ons 37: 10
abuse78:5 110:4
adjust 104:8
accept 76: 16 83:6,8
adjusted 100:3
accepted 59:5,5
administered 15:2019:7
access 16:20
administration
19:24
accident 16:6,13,21,23
31:1878:891:8,17
17:2,8,11,1630:1467:2,6
100:15 108: 11 111:7
68:5,2470:2273:14
administrator 28: 18
accidents 67:2 70:6,11,14
admitted 23:8
70:19
adopted 47:23,24
accomplish 108:23
adult 102:2
accomplishments 66: 13
adults
15:16
73:4
account 34:15 36:7 49:7,12 advance 23:24
adverse 14:19
60:16,18
advisory 19:9
accountability 6: 13
advocacy 91 :1399:12
accountable 109:20
accounts 49:5 50:18 71:20 Aeon 23:14 74:24
afield 58:16 110:10
accurate 94:11
afternoon 66:797:18
accurately 89: 13
10 1:22 102:2
age
achieve79:3110:22
agencies 4:14 5:11,12 6:10
Act75:15100:9
7:22 8:l1 13:1425:2
acting 3:6,8 7:11,24
32:2233:11 35:15 37:21
action 71: 15
39:
18,22 40:21 42: 16
actions 10:221:1322:22
59:1873:1677:1499:7
active 57: 19
99:10 103:21 104:6
activities 13: 11 36: 19
agency 6: 13 40:23,24
66:11 81:1483:1984:3
42:10 43:6 47:18 53:22
99:11,13
78:1380:1698:19
activity 66: 19 67: 13
agency's
5:13 25:5 79:14
actual 38:20
80:11
: actuarially 62: 11
agents
76: 16
• actuaries 36:6 92:21
aggressive 110: 19
acupuncture 69: 11
aggressiveness 80:7
add 44:4 63:12
ago 37:4 45:2147:1557:10
A

,

" ..~

~'. \

... '--

;,

80:16
agree 103:20 110:7 III :24
agreed 31:5
agreement 22:7 23:7 93:23
agreements 74:2375:2
agricultural 54: 10
ahead60:21 100:2
aided 73:17
ain't35:l7
airing 100:24
alarm 19:13
Albany 1:5 19:20
Alexander 2:3 4:2
alleged 68:2269:3,13
70:17
allegedly21:6 69:8,16 94:8
alleging 75: 18
allocated 5: 11 64: 18
allocates 19: 10
allocating 92 :21
allocation 38:4 47:10 80:11
88:1494:7110:21
allocations 91: 14
alluded 85:20
alterations 13: 10
ambulette 72:9
American 75:17
amount4:13 16:2225:9
42:549:461:871:18
80:1088:6
amounts 5:9
analysts 73:8
and/or 86:688: 19 89:6
94:11
angry 55:20
announced 72:2374:16
80:24
announcement 79:19
annual 14:18 91:12
annually 13:24 100:6
answer 24:23 29:23 31: 15
39:15103:4105:10 109:5
answers 104:23
anti-fraud 72:2482:3

"

Associated Reporters Int'l.. Inc.

800.523.7887

800.52.1.7887

12120/2:005, Albar:y, NY,

As.'.~mbly

Standing Committee 00 Intiurance..

Associated Reponer$ Jm'L,lnc.

Page 116

anybody 55:556:1896:13
105:18113:3
anyway 107:21
apologize 107: 12
apparent 41 :11
apparently 33:10 105:19
appeal 40: 13
appealing 55: 19
appear 103:23
appears 26:10 42:12
107:21
applied 35:486:14
applies 89:24
apply 93:2
appointing 67:15
appreciate 4:5 47:13 54:19
58:777:9,13,1784:22
90:3 113:6
appreciated 45 :23 79:21
appreciates 66: 11
appreciating 97 :21
appreciation 37:9
appropriate 8:219:933:15
47:2051:398:16
appropriated 46:23
appropriately 10: 16
appropriation 47:5 53:16
60:1464:10
appropriations 10:20
approved 17:10 21:22
approximately 13:2415:7
15:1416:9,1763:5,20
65:875:4 88:5
area57:6 62:20 76:12
101: 10
areas 5:19 33:454:1157:8
101:3
arena 87:1493:2
arguable 44:6
arguably 77 :24
argue33:16 90:7102:13
106: 14,15, 15
argued 100: 11
argument62:4 108:11

110:14111:3
arguments 106:11
argument's 63: 17
arising76:17
arose 46:5
arrange 6:19
arrangements 22:12
array 45:13
arrest 36:9
arrests 67:22
art 13:8
arthritis 11 :24
Article 15:5 62:15
articulate 36:24
articulating 107: 16
asked 26:2327:19.21,23
45 :20 55:23 84:6 93:9
105:9
asking 81 :22
Assembly 1:32:24:3,7
Assemblyman 4:2 28:7
84:21,2287:6
Assemblymember 2:3,4
58:6,1959:8,2260;3
82:1683:11 93:1894:14
94: 18,22 95 :2,5,8 107:1 0
109:8,24 111:9
assessed 49:1478:23 89: 13
assessment 49:24 50:24
87:488:20,2289:10,17
89:2390:9,16,1794:3
assessments4:18,18,21
75:2296:19
asset 81:23
assets 9:20 10:18 71:19
assistance 11 : 13 19:16
73:13,19
associated 11:5 24:442:3
95:12
Association 3: 12 84: 19,21
85:3.1189:1591:3
assume 79: 17
. assuming 72:7 81:23 95:12
i attempts 26: 18

attend 68:24 69:7,17
attendance 4:6
attending 113:13
attentions 57 :21
attest 56: 11
attorney 3: 10 20; 11 ,24
22:7,11,2325:2226:22
27:2365:1766:6,8,10,16
67:15,1871:877:21
86:23108:12,12
attorneys 68:22 72:13 73:7
76:24
attributable 45:23 48:23
52:2255:988:695:23
107:2
audit 87:2488:3
auditors 73:8
autbority4:10 5:6 90:5
auto 21:3,10,13,17,22,24
22:2 33:19 36:8 37:23
44:1755:766;2067:16
67:1769:2473:5,10
81 :20101:14,18,19,21
102:15104:14105:10
automobile 16: 16 17 :24
20: 17,18,2221 :16,20
available 16:2417:12
102:12
Avenue 105:8
average 18:16,19,24 22:3
averaged 63:13
avoid 23: 1975:21 87:3
awaiting 69:20
aware 58: 17 84:10
A.G 82:4,18,24
A.I.F,U 67:18,2273:12
A.I.G 75: 18,24
a.m 1:4

i

B 2:34:271:13
back 29:14 35:12 39:14
40: 18 43:5 45:20 50:23
50:2460:279:4,983:24

~~~~~~-~.~~~.~.~
. •=..,--~

Associated Reporters InCL. Inc.

800.5237887

lIOO.S23.7887

\
:

!

, )

12I:ln'lOOS. ~Y. NY.

89:11 90:8,16,2092:22
94:395:11
backlog 16:21
backs 86:20 111:15
back-billed 95:16
bad43:15 88:17,18105:6
107:7
ban 75:5
baDg 109:23
bank 10:12 71:20 84:2
112:11,24
banking 8:6 9:1410:19
44:24 45:13,1559:14
83:14,1684:1286:18
banks9:24112:4
Barclay2:4 7:458:6,19
59:8,22 60:3,7 82:16
83:11 84:2293:1894:14
94:18,2295:2,5,8 107:10
109:8,24 111:9
base 86:12
based 4:20 12:217:3 34:5
72:592:23 94:10 96:15
basically 88:9
basis 17:16 28:1985:13
91:13 93:7,7 94:12 95:24
96:20110:6
bear32:15111:13
beds 44: 14
began 25:18 30:18 35:5
74:5
beginning49:3,21,22
106:20
behalf8:598:8
believe 24: 17 31:634:6
39:641:753:1664:17
65:894:10 95:24
beneficial 23:15 58:10
benefit 5: 19 8:14,1811:7
12:320:727:10 30:20
31:832:10 33:13 34:3,19
35:7 38:542:1243:2
45:1450:6,1251:16
52:1654:1872:2274:19

_r-.

CrcrnWw " " _

AsIocimI ~ 1nt'L.1..,.

Page 117

75:676:1477:4,884:3
90:8,15 92: 19 94:3,8
III :18,19
beneftts9:13 14:1420:2
23:2424:725:1226:5,6
29:631:434:1036:20
38:2145:1250:476:19
77:1679:1092:1094:2
98:23
Bennett 3:9 66:4,5,7 77:17
78:15,21,2479:7 80:4,13
81:3,8,12,1582:12.15
83:2,12,17,20,2284:8,12
84:16
best5:8 52:7 59:6
better 9:7 52:11 85:18
102:15106:15113:4
betterment 24: 19
beyond 50:3
bids 23:10
bid-riggers 77:23
bid.rIgglng22:1674:2,12
74:1276:4,10
big 65: 11 98:11 99:17
100:12 102:5 103:3,4,20
103:22,24 104:8 106:23
108:17111:2,11,11
bigger 111:16
bW44:448:7
billed 69:1472:8
billion 16:17 20:16 23:16
39:675:4 87:8,15 100:6
billioDS 111:4
bllls70:6
biofeedback 69:11 72:11
bit 112:18
bi·plBDS 85:7
Blair 3:13 97:6,7,8,12,19
blame 56:8
bodies 46:1 0
bodlly21:7 67:3 69:19
70:871:10
bolster 99: 10
books 104:4

boost 37:22

border 55:8
borrowed 60:17
Boston 47:16
bother 32:8
bottom 27:10 31:6103:9
boxing 104:23
break 37:7 78:12
breaking 50:16
breast 12:8.22 39:2
bridge 10:7 86:3
brielly9:10
bring 30:15 31:3
bringing75:7 105:17
brings 5: 19
broad92:19
broadened 76:15
broken 37:23
broker 22:9 75:986:23
brokerage 23:8
brokers 74:3,7,8,13,24
75:776:1677:23
Bronx70:1571:2
Brooklyn 70:2
brought21:1167:2369:23
74:15,18
buck 109:23
bucks 37: 19
bndget4:I0,13,15,245:5,6
5:9,11,13,176:16,218:9
10:20 11:18 13:2224:6
29:11,1839:640:17,23
41:942:9,1843:4,944:13
44:23 45:2,3,5,7 47:4
53:2354:1256:2,2,3 59:3
61:962:363:5,2166:17
73:578:10,11 81:685:22
88:4,8,991:13,2095:9
104:3,7,9106:23
budgetary 59:16
budgeteers40:16112:17
budgets 4:9 87:20
building52:4
I buildings 20:4,4
,
!

"

Associated Reporters lnt'l., Inc.

800.523.7881

800.523.1811

12i2OOQl'l. AIt.y. NY. _ ,

-"CommioIoo on m.w...:..

~~

lDt" Inc.

Page liS

burden 44:8
burdens 96:24
bureau 3:10 28:17 66:6,9
73:2082:8 83:9
Bureaus 73:24
buried 87:20
business4:22 8:14 28:3
75:5 76:20 89:7
businesses 6:235:22
buy31:13 32:5,7 79:11
buymg5:246:3
C
C 1:5
cab 70:23
cake 87:9
calculate 89:7
calculated 34:4 89:13
94:1396:20,20
calcuJation 88:21 89:4,10
89:23
calculations 93:7
California 102:8,18,19,21
102:21
caU4:7
caUed21:20
campus46:364:14
Canada 47:23
cancer 11 :23 12:5,8,11,13
12:16,18,19.2327:15
39:2,288:15
cancers 35:10
capabilities 19:17
capable 8:16
capita 52:20,20
capsize 19:19
caption 114:6
car 17:1037:17,1770:5,21
70:24 72:10101:22
cards 100:4,8
care 9:7 11:21 12:4 13:5
14:18,2415:2,5,10,11,14
15:17,1833:2,10 41:11
44:15,1666:2468:21

69:9,12 83:4 85:5 89:21
92:11 100:9101:11
112:12
carriers 21:868:1969:15
70:4,7,9,1773:1874:3
76:6,13 96:2
carry 79:24 86:2
cars 6:4 70:20 72:7
carte174:12
case 5:18 12:11 36:741 :17
. 44:1469:16,2280:18
81 :16 91 :24108:12
111:20
cases 8:2024:11 25:24
35:339:241:842:8,23
43:3,568:12,1471:4
80:2485:2086:24
casb31:17106:6
casualty 19:10 44:1852:20
74:1476:14
catalyst 22:21
catastrophe 20:5
cause47:1070:21114:4
caused 14:1918:15,19
cavein 19:20
Center 11:22 34:21
certain5:191l:723:9
30:1733:2456:16103:5
certainly 25:1936:11
39:1441:1747:1257:4
81:1683:790:11 93:2
97:298:10 103:15,19
certif'Jeation 32:24 92: 12
certify 114:3
cervical 12:17,19,23 27:15
cetera 91:20
CHAIR 4:3
Cbairman2:37:17,18
24:2427:728:629:430:3
31:9,1632:13,1835:11
36:6,13 37:3 38:9,12
39:10,16,2440:5,10 41:6
42:1543:10,2044:11,21
45:6,10,18,1947:1248:3

Associated Reporters Inn. Inc.

48:6,10,1849:6,10,14,18
49:2350:10,1551:10
53:3,1854:3,756:13 57:9
57:13 58:4 60:9 61:6,12
61:15,17,2462:2363:6
63:2364:6,1965:3,18,22
66:277:12.1978:18,22
79:5,880:5,1481:4,9,13
82:10,1383:13,18,21
84:2,10,14,1890:2291:6
91:11,16,2192:4,793:5
95:3,1096:997:6,16
103:15,19106:22107:6
111:10 112:10,16,22
113:2,8,11
ChaIrman's 58:12
ebaIlenge 17:7
clUlDce 66: 12
change 60:20
changed 33:4
changes 79:22
cbarge 31 :22
cbarged 4:1668:1869:23
70:1571:3
cbarges21:12 67:23 71:12
76:7
;
cb&rt52:17
,
cbeck 56:2181:583:23
84:8
checks 55:12
cbief3:10 28:15,1866:5,8
cbiefs 28: 18
Cblld 15:12,19
chiJdren 15:18
CHIP 89:9
chiropractic 69: 11
cboice8:22 37:18 51:11
choose 108:24
cbose60:21103:23 107:15 ~
."
cbosen6:1634:2462:18
,
78:8,8 103:6
chronic 34:23 62:20
cbunks 29:15
' cigarette47:14 63:24

800.523.7887

.

.

1!IIO.$23.7887

I2i2tlIlOO5,AIluy, NY,-,.~Qwnm_OII_

_~Int1,,!nc.

Page lJ9

cigarettes 18:4,6,9,9,19

, I

,

comes 37:22 40:18 53:23
46:2,2465:12.13,19
78:1283:2384:13104:10
comfortable 109:17
clrcumstances-99:6
citizens 5:24 4&.5 .
coming 112:6
dty26:15 64:1470:573:15 comineuded 47:15
103:17
COIJIIIleDt32:18 41:5 96:11
civll22:21 71:1476:12
commtnJllil7:24 ' ~
dvlUaa 18:22
cominercial74:689:20
claim 11:9 67:4 99:4
94:996:2
ciaJuumts 10:4,4,8,13
Commlwrion 44: 12
clalmut's 17:4
CommisAnner7:138:3
claimed 10:17 70:7 72:11
comm'sdons 74:7,10 75:6
ciaims9:14,21 10:4,6,10
76:4,17
10: 12, 12,15,20,21,22
Committee 1:3 2:24:3 7:5
11:3,6,13 13:4 14:2 17:3
7:6,1997:2198:7103:2
17:521:4,867:669:19
commI1:tees4:891:18,20
70:3,1671:11 75:23
common 59:15
86:18,1999:3
communicated 91:8,14
clear 9:4 42:2343:2,394:2 community 11 :22 12:2
98:1899:6
34:2141:495:21101:10
dearly 19:2 34:19 62:6,12 comp 6:3 35:22 75:21
compllBies4:21 9:23,24
87:588:1894:696:2
11:10 16:17 23:9 75:14
98:15
derks94:24
81:1783:8
company 74:13,17 79:12
cUents23:9
86:19108:20
cUnlc41:3 68:3,24 69:3.8
69:14,17
company's 4:20
clinics 38:2468:5 70:24
compared 12:18 105:6
71:10
106:6
c1osing44:12111:11
comparison 101 :18,23
due 104:17
102:2,9
compensation 11: 15 22:9
Coast 48:4
code 19:2448:23 52:4
22:1275:9
competition23:11
codes 19:13 48:24 49:3
competitive 52:21
collaborative 42: 16
collapsed 53: 13
complain 56: 18 58:3
complainiog55:2256:5
collecting 72:4
collection 16:5
57:22
complaints56:12,1483:7
collectively 23:16 35:14
complete 16: 11
colorectalI2:11,23
complex 72:1498:1699:8
combat 16:19 20:12
complexity 68: 13
come 4:9 35:11 38:19
54:1257:1958:366:12
compliant 65: 11
95:11 104:6105:2
component 52:3 95:23

comptroller81:788:4
ComptroDer's 87:24
computed 93:8
conceivable 94:4
CODceJvably 85:22,24
99:16
coocept 104: 10
couceru 25:4 54:2058:12
61:296:19,21 103:20
coucerned5:2278:13
c:oaeerns 11:10 56:20
77:2091:797:3
coDClode90:2
concluded 113:14
condusion 23:21
concrete 72:2292:21
conducted4:665:8
conducting 8:16
conference 47:15
confident 26:20
conOicts23:19
confront 20:22
connect 53:5
connected 39:17
connection 106:12,13
112:7
conservative 34:5
consider 32: 19 42:13
considerable 40:13
Considerably 45:10
consideration 56:3
considered 24:21
Consisteut 13:20
consisting 114:8
conspired 67: 11
constituents 90: 19
constructlO4:12106:19
construction 20:3 86:4
,
consultant 74: 19
consultation 47:4
consomer9:13 26:7,11
27:10 31:4 51:17 52:17
83:7,892:10 99:12
101:20103:12,12104:19 ,:
,~

Associated Reporter> Inll, Inc.

800.523.7887

SOO.S23.7S87

l~.AlhoIIy.IIY.~y!llluldioi c _ ... -

.

""""'""'" ~ lm'I.. lo<.
Page 120

)

105:S,10 106:2
CODSUlJler'S S:S,20,23.24
6:8 7:2 8:15,19 9:4,6 11:7
11:2012:418:219:320:2
20:7 23:3,IS,23 24:2,8,16
24:20 2S:IO,12 29:12,19
31:7,1132:143S:19,24
3(1:1937:9,24 38:19 39:4
39:841:244:164S:1S
SO:2,6,24 67: 13 72:22
7S:6 77:20 80:8 84:698:9
98:13101:18102:9,15
103:10 111:12.16
con""""" 16:20 36:15
contains 13;8
conteDd 34:18
context 7:3
contingent 74:775:676:3
76:16
continuation 96: 11
continue 46:14 75:24 77:3
96:17
continued 15:24 77:9
continues 76:5
continuing 54:13,23 73:23
76: 13,22 104:3
contracted 65:20,21
contracting 64:4
contribute 20:532:287:2
88:12
contributed 24: 18
contributing 20: 18
control 5:23 17:21 30:24
63:2
controlled 11 :2469:4
convenience 51:4
convenient 37: 12 40: 12
conversation 103:3
convicted 71:23,24
conviction 68:8
convictions 70: 11 72:17
cooperation 27:6
Cooperative 22:6
. coordinate 21 :2

roordiDatloD 27:6
copies 94:21
copy 8:4 102:17
comers~S:14

Corpondkm23:147S:2
Corleetion 70:5
correspoDdeoee 91 :IS
corruptiOD 71:7;13
cost 7:2 9:8,1411;S 12:1S
12:11,1818:220:15,22
25:24 '1»;7 311:6,15 34:15
39:18,2341:24 44:555:9
58:1060:22 61:3 90:15
92:1S
costing 27: 14
costs 11:2112:713:5 14:18
16:1619:924:344:16
53:657:16,1867:12
93:2495:1297:2
counsel3:13 97:13 114:6
count21:576:8
counterfeiting 13:9
counties 67 :24
country 55:8, 14 72:8
County 71:22 76:8
couple 37: 16 45:2147:24
60:1090:23
course 25:17 26:9 68:15
court 71:19
court-oniered 72:18
cover 33:23 44:1051:3
coverage 6:2,3,5 15:8
cow31:17106:6
coworkers 56:22
crasb70:20
create 23:10 106:19
created 17:8 47:2 87:16
creates 87:3
Crime73:19
crimes 72:2
criminal8:71S:2316:3
22:2168:1472:1673:24
76:7
criteria 100:14106:5

Associated Reporters Inn" Inc.

altlcal86:10 90:14
eridclalJy 106:19
ctoOkeIt:67: 10
curreatS:S,7,146:14
10:18,22:2124:17 109:10
curreotJy 23:20
CIDtilIIll 0: 19
customers 4:23 45:13,IS
74:9,11 84;2
cutting 40:7

D

._-

da8lllge9:8
oam884567:4
damn 57:15
dance 53:19
data 16:4,14,22,23 17:15
30:11 89:11,1293:17
date6:2021:10,2169:19
71:2 76:5,22
day 114:13
deal 83:5,14
deaths 18:15,18
debate 100:12,14,20
106:20
debls52:19
deeade 20: 13 25:948:16
96:16
December 1:4
deceptive 74:20
dedde62:11
declded49:19
declslon42:16 43:4 95:20
decisions 29:7 31:2140:19
53:2059:496:12,14
104:2,6,12
decline 18:14 21:16
declined 18:16
decrease 14:4
decreases 12:12
decreasing 14:9
i
deemed 42:24
defendanls21:1267:24
68:2,15,2069:2,5,20,23

800.523.7887

,,

800,523.7837

1ll2MOOS.A1booy.NY.~SUodIq(Am_ ..

_

_~Int1..

lnc.

Page 121

70:4,8,12,1771:7,15,20
71:2472:6
defense 112:2
defensible 108:17110:23
define 109:2
clefioed 85:1986:8 110:15
defining 90:6
defbdte 21: 14
cIe1ImUoII86:7
defraud 68:1976:10
delays 16:13
deUvery 15:10 44:15
demand 46:11,16
demands 46:14,17
demonstrable 51: 14
demonstrate 73:4
demonstrates 9:2
Demds3:7 7:12 8:2 32:9
. 60:962:2
dental 69: 12
department 3:4,6,8 4: 11
5:207:10,11,13,16,238:3
8:13,16,199:3,11,16
10:19,2411:2,4,1612:20
12:24 13:13 14:23 15:2,3
15:20,2217:18,1919:6
19:13,14,2320:921:20
21:2122:2325:13,14,15
25:1526:3,1627:828:15
28:2329:3,9,1732:19
33:636:2341:742:11
43:1144:13,2445:3,17
45:2146:9,2247:11
48:2050:5,851:15,23
52:23,2456:1559:9,21
63:2266:1567:7,20
72:2373:13,15,21 77:6
80:7,2282:2 83:1684:13
86:1787:1390:1392:8,9
93:10,2398:11,17,20,22
99:14,21,22 100:16,21
101:7,17102:12,14103:2
104:16,17105:3.16,22
108:10,14

Departmental 60: 14
departments 14:22
Depal1ment's4:15,245:16
7:21 8:5,89:1411:17
22:6,1023:22 24:6,11,13
33:1835:1247:13 57:19
79:1985:2286:18 100:2
103:7 107:24
depend 50:21,22
dependent 50:20
dependiD& 110: 14
depends 40:6 42:22 51:21
52:381:16
deployed 19:19 53:10
depth 59:7
Deputy 3:47:9,12,16,23
8:3
derived 24:7
describe 9:12
described 25:5
describing 68: 11
deserve 108:5 111:5
descrves 108:5
designated 20 :24 23: 19
designed 13:9 14:6,15
20:21
despite6:16103:17
detall28:10
details 68:12
detection 27: 15
determine 26:1439:23
detennined 25:7 49:3
determining 90:15
deterrence 81 :24
detriment24:15
develop 17: 13 100:3
developed 41 :8
development33:2,842:4
99:23
develops 19:9
diabetes 11 :23
• diagnosis 38:24
diagnostic 37:4
dialogue90:l1 93:12,22

113:5
difference 57:17
different33:21 35:23
45:24 46:12 57:369:22
70:16,18 101:3 108:21
d.Ifticalt 6: 13 30: 14 62: 17
dUIlc:uJty 87:16
diffused 81 :21
DlUI. . . 112:4,11
direct 11:720:233:13
35:2452:1654:1560:14
82:23 88:1890:8
directed 70:24
dJrectIy 10:9 32:21 34:18
48:2350:651:16,19
52:22,2462:1682:19
92:22
director 7:6 60:6 97:20
disappointment 6: 19
disaster 20:6
disasters 53:9
disclosed 100: 14
disclosure 89:22
discourse 90: 10
discuss 9: 10 26:4 96: 17
discussed 59:4 86:10
discussion 30: 19 31:20
35:543:585:17 86:10
96:4,8 103:11 105:24
113:4,9
discussions 27:3 104:15
disease 11:19,2312:16
44:8 62:8,9,20
diseases 34:23
disparities 102:3,5
dispensed 13: 17
disrespect 53: 19
distinguish 31 :10
distributed 16:7
distribution 17:2
district51:2152:11,15
districts 52: 13
diverse 72:13 85:7
diversion 98: 15

.

Associated Reporters 1nt'L.lnc,

"

800.523,7887

;

.,

lU2MOOS. AUlIIIy. NY,

_y

SI>adIIIs a..m;a.e ... insunl1Ic<.

_ _ Rcporrm llII't.loc.

Page 122

divert 13: 11
diverting 99:20
dividends 19:2
Dlriston6:15 8:7 13:22
15:2316:719:2329:17
42:9,1743:853:2354:12
104:2,7
doctor 69:3
doctors 31:2232:3,5,768:3
68:2171:8
doemnent79:1580:20
99:18
documentation 81: 10
documents 81 :17
doing 26:20 36:18 37:14,20
37:21 38:21 64: 14,15
108:7
dollar 39:6 94:7
dollars 5: 12 6:2414:923:2
23:1735:2,1737:17
45:1148:1351:653:15
55:13 70:8 75:9 80:10
87:8,15,1888:5 108:6
111:4
domicile 86:15
domiciled 86:20
door 50:23
doubled 4:24
dramatic 63:15 96:14
dramatically 12:16
draw 106:18
drive 13:4
driven 43:3 53:22
driver 70:21,22,23
drivers 35:22 70:10,19
102:5
drug 14:5,19
drugs 13:11
due 14:11,1918:18
dun 29:12
dunning 91:9
duplicate 10:24
D.C.J.S 26:20
D.0.B78:16

D.O.1 87:23 88:4,893: 15

eDIIbled 16:10 66:18
eDIIbles 11:18 53:11
E
ENCON59:18
E3:2
enCOWlter68:13
earUer20:15 27:362:8
eneoorage 14: 16
100:17106:14
eulol'lle 64:22 108: 13
early 12:8,17 26:23 27:15
enforced 52:5
38:10,2462:763:1574:5 enforcement19:2430:23
easelMnt25:8
42:564:22 65:14 71:14
easier 101:17102:9
73:1699:10
easy 55:19 108:3 112:3
enforcing 65:2
educate 110:20
engaced 75:1993:22
educated98:13106:17
engineering 30:22,23
educating 102:15
enhance 99: 13
education 30:23 103:12
enhancing 72: 17
effect 18:13 25:19 73:22
enjoy 20:7
81:2483:3
enroDed 15:16,18
effective 17: 13
enrollment 15:13
effectively 16:1952:5
ensure 35:13,23 58:20
effectiveness 19:11 24:15
65:1089:1298:12,13
eflicacy 13:18 51:22 62:7
entail 75:4
efliclency 51 :22
enter 16:23
effort 16:14 25:23 57:20
enterprise 71:7,13
101:17
entire 16:6
efforts 21:3 34:22 66:20,21 entirely4:16 33:14 38:2
72:2473:1676:2477:2
63:2111:24
82:392:22
equally 44:6 72:21
eight 12:22 21:671:6 73:8 equation 88:10
76:9
equipment 16:9,11 51:23
eitber8:22 9:1110:724:6 equipped 108:13
38:2041:981:584:11
eqnity89:19
electronic 14:6,7,14,16
errors 14:9,10,19 34:14
16:434:11
100:5111:4
electronically 17:9
escalating 67:9
elects 81:9
especially 57:6
eleven 69:20
essentlall11:15
eligible 100:16
establisbed26:2467:17
eliminated 24:7
estimate 34:543:1855:3
elimination 24: 13
estimated 13:2214:10,17
emergency 17:2319:16
16:1520:1634:1568:19
employed 52:23 70:18
73:2
employee 74:19 76:14
estimates 13:21
employees 76:5
et 91:20
employs 51:16
etbical22:16
'""

Associated Report"", lot1., loc.

800.523.1881

f

-

,

,
"

100.523.78117

1212lY2OO5,~,

NY,.I.uemI>ly s-. "'-00"""""""

_

R_lnI'l.,lnc.

Page 123
\

European 11:10 86:19

expens1veSS:1472:1O
event 20:6
experience 8:20 25:20 27:8
47:3,756:19 101:4,23
events 14:19
eventual 71:18
expertise 98: 19,21
everybody37:8 38:454:18 expbdns99:18
explanation 108:5
105:9113:13
ever-evolviDg 72: 14
exp:essIDg 109: 17
extensive 102:22
evidence 18:14
evidence-based 12:6
extensively 101:6
evolved 63:10
uteDt25:7 50:16 52:14
exact 101:22.22,22102:4,5
53:11,1481:1091:7
102:20
104:23
~xamlnation 102: 14
extra 37:16
t'xaminations4:17
extraordlnarOy 35 :20
examined 61:4
E's30:24
examp1e5:2118:726:2.13 E-presa:ibing 96:5
33:735:8,10 41:12,12,13
..
F
41:1548:2251:1852:16
fabrieator
103:24
94:599:20109:4111:3
face 22: 14
examples 12:2
faciUtate
34:11 71:17
exceed 48: 19
facilitated 104:6
exceeding 63: 14
facilitating 20:3
exceeds 76:23
fad 16:6 25:4 27:21 35:24
excellent 26: II
37:10 46:23 48:24 55:16
excess 76: 14
56:11
72:988:2492:24
exchange 68:6
94:10 95:15
excited 4:4
faetor20:18
36:1067:9
excluded 89: 17
80:23
exclusions 89:8
fadored39:13
excuse 74:18
fadors45:24
executive 7:128:220:23
failed 47:22,22
28:867:15 108:20
fair42:462:2163:17
executives 74:1775:18
fairly 34:5
76:979:12
fairness
111: 18
existence 73: 11
fake 23:10
existing 46: 18 66: 19
false
71 :10 72:5
exists 105 :6,12, 13
falsely
72:3, 11
expanded 13:7,22 33:22
familiar 46:3
35:847:875:11
Family 15:12,17 89:9
expanding 104: 18
far 24:3 28:10,2458:16
expansion 35:7
76:23 77:21 84:498:5
expeet77:3
102:22 104:8 110:10
expectation 77:21 96:9
111:13,18
expenses 4:22 84:4

_

,

)

Associated Reporters bu'L. Inc.

Farm 22:2
rar-l'eac:hing68:1875:5
fascinated 98:5
fatalities 18:15
fault 70:10
fear 6:21
features 13:8
Febnuary65:7
federal 13:14 33:2435:3
feel 97:10 105:14 109:17
feeling 108: 19,21
feels 105:4
fees4:16 35:3 45:14 59:11
60:1884:4
feU 18:19
felony21:11 67:2371:13
fewer 20:7 44:14
fiduciary 74:11
field 54: 10 55:7 65:14,18
74:19
fight 66:20
fighting 19:12 25:2387:18
89:1692:2
figure 40:23 44:22 48:14
54:1755:4106:7
!
figured 37:6
med 75:16
fiJing99:4
,
f"JIls 10:7
final 54:22 55:23
f'mally 20:988:21 93:6
fmancial69: 18 75: 13 ,20
99:9
financially 23: 15
find 39:10 51:13 55:6,12
65:1692:2093:6 104:11
finding 10:3,4
!.
fine 81:6
fines 50: 19,22 72:19
finite 75:1276:2
fire 17:20,23 18:3,5,18
19:5,12,1220:628:15,15 :
28:1838:2146:2,3,11,23
47:1451:19,2352:11,15

800.523.7887

.

121'»'2005. _Yo NY.

52:1963:2,2464:12,14
64:16,24 65:2,12101:6
fires 17:22 18:15,19,23
firm 21:6 71 :6,9
OrmIy 105:20
ftrms23:8,1868:5
first 3:4 7:8,9,15,23 18:8
20:1225:746:1247:2,21
58:1365:966:2267:22
74:22 88:24 101:5
fiscal 5:2,4,14
fit 108:17 110:23
five 5: 13 12:8,12 22:4
37:1989:2 101 :24
Dat46:2247:6
Dexible 50:21
Floor 1:5
Dows79:3
Dow-through 79:14
focus 4:10,12 54:23 57:20
62:1880:396:22103:20
focused 29:6
folks 26:13,1727:356:22
57:5
follow 65:4
following 12:2
force 46:4
foregoing 114:4,7
forfeitDre21:9 71:16 72:19
81:23
Forge 13:3 26:2 27:20
29:13 30:4 31:23 33:20
38:239:1941 :12,23
43:1460:12,2161:8
92:1294:695:18
Forged 61:12
forgeries 13:10
form 8:10 9:7 45:22 60:11
formal 93:13,14,14
former 28:11,1576:9
fonns4:23 13:6 19:941 :24
formula 38:16
forward 7:758:2086:2
93:16

-r

SUdlI!tI~ ... ~

Page 124

forwarded 17:10
found 12:13 46:24 47:3
54:11
four25:2 37:19 64:10,17
76:585:14101:24
FrIIlIk3:5 7:10 8:243:24
thmkly26:527:4,11,18
110:2,24
fraud5:2114:5 16:15,16
17:1420:13,14,1721:11
21:J.l,14,18 25:2330:8
30:19,21 34:3,1236:9
57:6,10,16,21,23,23
66:2167:17,1869:24
73:5,1478:582:20 83:3
110:19
frauds 30:12
frauduleut 13:4,11 14:2
21:3,725:2134:667:6
70:3 74:3,20 75:20
fraudulently 13:16 69:14
Fraud's 83:9
free 84:3
freezing 71: 19
frequently 70:22
fresb98:4
frosting 87:10
fugitive 70:12
full 49:5
fully 8:16 9:12 24:10,12
39:11
fonctlon32:24 33:17 41:19
42:988:17
functions8:17 10:1828:14
fund8:22,24 16:826:10
49:2,978:2379:288:13
90:21 106:6,8 110:7
111:6112:6
fonded9:2,1510:16,19
23:23 24:5,10,1235:2
46:2149:452:2467:19
96:699:19100:2,20
101:16106:16109:15
funding 10:2311:1720:10

24:9,1427:233:735:2
38:1740:1241:1550:17
59:1066:1677:1096:8
100:16103:6111:14
funds9:1115:2417:19
22:642:2054:1558:23
59:20 64:18 66:17 78:17
92:14
furniture 18:7
further 19:454:576:19
future77:5 85:1296:23
109:9,22 110:8
F.T.E64:11
G
gain 31:432: 11
gained 23:24 30:2140:13
game 62:21
gather 37:22 78: 10
GEICQ22:2
geueral3: 10 20: 11,24 22:7
22:11,2426:22 27:23
29:5,2032:1635:238:3
38:1842:2051:558:23
65:1766:6,1067:1678:9
78:2379:282:22 88:13
90:21 108:13 112:6
generally 9:5 10: 17 28:22
83:492:18
General's 25:22 66:8,16
67:1877:22 86:23108:12
geographically 65:15
getting26:11 94:1296:10
;
109:22
give57:1564:6 108:15
given 32:4 51 :20,21,23
52:10,1598:5
giving 46: 10 94:15
glad82:9103:16
.
go 40:24 44:865:978:23
79:2,10 85:9 101:2 110:9 "
111:15
goals 110:21,22
goes 28:10 34:8 79:9
;

;

,"

Associated Reporters In!1., Inc.

AluIocioood Rqmerslat'l.. Inc.

800.523.7887

-.

· 1:/I200.005. AaBy.NY, - , . StandiIIaCmun....... _

_

~

1n.1..lac.

Page 125

going 28:2 29:2.14 42:6
43:1844:8,945:20 54:19
55:1856:757:1558:13
58:20 59:7 65:1571:22
81:24 93:16 94:2,8 96:13
96:23 97:11,22 10.5:2,14
106:2,3,23.24107:23
108:15 109:9 112:4
gooci7:18 31:7,11 38:17
52:21 66:780:1795:2
97:18 101:8 107:5 109:4
109:5 111:3
goods 88:11
gotteD 104:16
government 15:1147:21
54:16
Governor 20:20,23 21:19
48:756:15
Governor's 67:14
governs 66:23
grand 71:5,14 76:8,11
Grannis 2:3 4:2 7: 1924:24
29:430:331:9,1632:13
35:11 36:1337:338:12
39:16,2440:5,10 42:15
43:10,2044:11,2145:6
45:10,1847:1248:3,6,10
48:1849:6,10,14,18,23
50:10,1551:1053:3,18
54:756:13 57:9,13 58:4
60:961:6,12,15,17,24
62:2363:6,23 64:6,19
65:3,18,2266:277:12,19
78: 18,2279:5,880:5,14
81:4,9,13 82:10,13 83:13
83:18,21 84:2,10,14,18
84:21 87:690:2291 :6,11
91:16,2192:4,793:595:3
95:10 96:9 97:6,16
103:15,19106:22107:6
111:10 112:10,16,22
113:2,8,11
grants 35:3 41:18
great 6:18 29:18 39:3

94:11,22113:7
grealer28: 10
greatly 77:9
Group 3:14 75:2,1797:13
groups 9:18
grew46:15,15,15
gro'iriDg 4: 12
grown 5:3
growth 48:19
IUJU1Ulteed 13: 19
guess 25:3 29:5 31:16,19
32:1037:8,1238:13
39:2444:21 59:661:6
64:21 78:680:8,2081:7
92:896:15,22 Hl4:3
105:7106:18108:19
110:11
guide 101 :20 105:5,1 0
106:2
guilty 68:7,1669:2071:3
74:1676:6
guys93:20 106:10

12:6,20,24 13:5,13,20
14:18 15:2,6,8.11,12,13
15:17,19,2124:1925:13
26:4 32:20 34:21 37:24
41:3.4,744:15,1647:16
50:462:6,15.1768:21
69:5,983:484:19,21 85:3
85:4,10,21,2386:687:6
87:14.1688:11,17,22
89:5,9,1590:1291:392:8

92:11 93:2 99:21100:2,5
100:9101:11
Health's 14:23
hear6:9,19 35:21 55:21
56:4 57:22 86:16 103:4
heard 30:12 56:12,13,17
56:2467:6 104:21 106:9
bearing 1:5 7:20 30:13
56:280:1598:399:16
105:8,16 107:3 109:21
113:7,14 114:11
hearings 4:6,8 57:10
100:22
- - -..~..- -.. beart 11 :23 31 :6
half26:468:10
heist 112:24
HaD 46:5
held 10:17 105:20,23
lIammer93:15
beD 37:7 112:14
hampered 16:14
help 44: 18 50:7 79:24
banded 81:5
98:24 99:7,10,22 100;4
handle 11:3
102:8103:8,9,11
bandwrittelll4:12
helped 10: 11 47:7
happen 108:16 109:7
helpful 100: 13
happens 50:20
helping 27:18
happy 24:22 27:4 55:14
helps99:3101:20 112:8
56:6,11 57:7
hereof 114:7
hard 6:638:12,13 78:7
,
hereto 114:6
104:22107:19108:18
hereunto 114: 13
109:6 111:6
hey 29:10
hard-pressed 6:7
high 9:14 20:18 35:20
Harvard 47:16
55:17
hasten 63:12
higher 4:23 52:6,7,13
HCRA87:7,9,14,1992:2
55:16,18
health 3: 126:27:138:3,6
highest 52:7 55:7,9
9:711:16,20,21,2212:2,4 highlights 87 :24
------~-~----------~

Associated Reporters Int'I.. Inc.

-

800.523.7887

121»'2005. AI!>ooIy. NY. _ 1 SIalldiotrCommitn 00 1Munnco.

soo.m.7817

_1!q>omn1At'1..1oc.

Page 126

mpJy50:20
highways 106:14
tdJJt 96: 13
bire64:17
bired64:IO
blns64:3,7
bit 84:24
hold 10:17
holders 9:22 11:8 21 :23
23:1773:3,10 75:3,8
76:1971:479:12,18
80:19
holding 98:3
Holocaust 9: 18,22 10:6,10
10:15,20,2211:10,13
86:18
homeowners 52:8
homes 6:4
hope 107:5
Horner3:1397:7,12,18,19
103:16104:20107:4,18
109:13 110:12 111 :23
112:15,21,24113:6,9
hospital 32:23 33:1744:12
99:23 100:3,7,8
hours 26:4
how. 56:17
huge 29: 15 41:20
hundred 12:21 63:8
hundreds 22:24

illegal 22:20 67:13
illegally 21:9 22: 15 71: 17
illustrate 68: 12
imagine 38:14
immediately 34:3
Impact 21:l4 62:10 76:21
80:23 81:t3 85:23
impajr24:14
impersolUlted 72:12
impIement8:21 11:18
23:18
implementation 18:3
imp1emeated8:1B 18:5
21:1929:24
importance 19:5
Important6:12 19:22
20:11 24:472:21 73:11
105:21 106:20110:16
imposed 22:22 68:9
imposes 86: 12
imposing 90:5
imposition 22:24
impossible 10:5
impressive 27:12
improper 109: 11,11
improve 11 :20 105:4
improved 101 :9
improving 101:13
inappropriate 22:20
109:16
inappropriately 22: 15
I
82:14
idea 29:18 37:15 39:17
incentive 87:3
42:1743:1555:15104:24 incentives 75:7
ideas 31:22 40:18 43:8
incidents 13:1517:23
54:2,10107:5,7
include 11:2119:12 86:13
identifted24:9 35:14 67:8 included 8:10 68:2 71:7
99:16
89:10
identify 33: 14
includes 86:24
identifying 100: 15
including 15:12 17:20
identity 72:7
21 :2424:2044:7 67:4
igniting 18:6
68:21 69:10 70:4 71 :20
ignition 18 :8, 10
73:7 75:5 108:7
IT 9:17
inclusive 114:9

.

)

)

Associated Reporters Inl'l.. Inc.

mcrease5:6,15 14:635:6
. 40:1544:946:2063:19
86:5,688:890:19103:11
IAcreued 15:14 63:11
87:23 88:2,7,20
1Di:riaseS5:7 '12:16 25:20
47tlO 63:17 87:19 92:3
100:23
Incrusing46:11,1775:8
iDcreaIIngIy 99:8
'flk:recUbJe 31 :18
mdependent 37:5
iDdicate 56:23
indicated 91 :24
indicates 88:4
indication 110:3
indicted 71:6
indictment21:569:3,12
76:8
indictments 21 :8
indirect 85: 16
individual 39:22 68:15
92:22
iDdividnals 12:22 35:9
68:4,1770:1571:6
industry9:514:8,13,24
19:4,10 22:1356:5,16,19
57:1458:1667:974:4
·
75:11 77:24 83:14 87:5
87:1490:11,1898:13,15
98:23
industry's 10: 17 103:9
inequitable 86: 11
information 16:20,2417:6
17:11 80:21 81:5 89:5
93:13102:19,23
informed 29:2
Initially 46:24
Initiation 54:2
Initiatives 12:317:1918:21 '
~
injured 66:24 67:2100:7
injuries 18:22 70:7 71:2
98:24103:8 110:19
injury 21:767:3,569:19

800.523.7881

·

.

•

800.523.7887

IUlQI2C(l5.A1b111y.NY._Y-'~"1JwnD<c.

_It:paotonlllt~.loc.

Page 127

\,

i

)

70:3,971:8,1099:5,11
bmocent 68:16
inoculations 27:13
inpatient 32:23 33: 17
99:23
input17:11
inquiries 86:23
Insignifiamt48:12
inspection 64:15
inspectious 38:22 64: 16
65:9
installation 16:8
instance 43: 17
instances 24:9 34:2435:4
51:15
instituted 7 1:15
Instructions 14: 12
InsubstanUal42:2
insurance 1:3 2:1,2 3:1,4
4:1,4,11,195:1,8,20.23
6:1,77:1,2,5,10,16,21,23
8:1,6,8,12,14,15,15,17,19
9:1,3,4,5,6,11,13,16,21
9:23,2410:1,12,21,24
11: 1,2,3,4,4,6,7,17,19
12:1,313:1 14:1.8,13,22
15:1,3,2216:1,15,16,17
16:1817:1,14,18,2418:1
19:1,2,4,820:1,2,9,11,17
20:19,2221:1,4,8,10,11
21:13,17,18,19,2122:1,6
22:9,10,13,18,2323:1,2,9
23:21,2224:1,2,5,6,10,12
24:2025:1.10,1226:1
27:128:1,2429:1,9,12,17
29:1930:131:1,1332:1
32:1533:1,6,1834:135:1
35:12.1936:137:1.9.17
37:1838:1,1939:1,4,8,10
40:141:1,242:1.11 43:1
43:11,1244:1,4,13 45:1
45:1546:147:148:149:1
49:9,2450:1,6,7.2451:1
51:17,1752:1,8,8,1753:1

53:2,654:1,6,855:1 56:1
56:557:1 58:1,13,1659:1
60:161:162:1,4,1663:1
63:2264:165:1 66:1,14
66:2167:1,7,12,13,16,17
67:2068:1,1969:1,24
70:1,4,771:1 72:1,4,22
73:1,5,10,13,18,19,21
74:1,4,6,17,2075:1,11,12
76:1,2,6,15,1677:1,4,20
77:24 78:1 79:1,11,11
80:1,6.2281:1,17,2182:1
82:2.14,20,2083:1,6,8
84:1,5 85:1,23,23 86:1,17
86:1987:1,1388:189:1
90:1,11,12,1891:1 92:1,9
93:1 94:1,995:1 96:1
97:198:1,9,11,12,23 99:1
99:21,24 100: 1,6, 16,23
101:1,14,16,18,19,21
102:1,15 103:1 104:1
105:1,10106:1 107:1,24
108:1,10,14,19109:1,12
109:23110:1,5,10 111:1
111:12,16112:1113:1
114:1
insure 87:3
insured 86:14,2493:3
insurer 62: 10
insurers4:17,IB 12:7
13:24 14:421:20,24
37:23 43:19 74:9,1476:2
79:4,9 86: 15.21 93:3
insuring 6:4 42:6
Intend 104:1l
Intensive 41 :23 72: 15
intentionally 70:20
interagency 6: 12
interest 3:14 23:19 27:24
27:24 28:16 66:11 89:3
97:13,21
interested 86: 16
interests 75:880:8
intemaDy 65: 19

Associated R.poners Inn., Inc.

international 10:8 75:17
iDtenect62:14
InterveDtlon 12:6 62:7
Intimately 2B:13,24
Intuitively 27:17 36:18
inure 94:8
Invested 80:18
invesdgaie20:1275:24
Investigated 13:14
Investigatlon22:8,l1 23:6
30:1573:1874:275:10
76:377:22
investigations 23:20 72:15
73:1474:576:18,22
77:24
investigator 17:12
Investigators 16:18 17:3,6
42:5 73:877:2
investigatory 21:2
investment73:9,2382:7
invitation 6: 17
invitations 6: 18
invoice 88:23
involve 6:24
involved 21:6 28:13,24
30:734:2264:1269:16
113:5
involvement 25 :6, 17
involves 42:3
involving 70: 14 74:12
75:20
ironic 86:16
issue 47:14 57:1 1 97:22
104:14105:15109:14
issues51:1155:2462:16
96:18100:24101:12
item 55:23
items 9:20 27:7
I.S.O 52:3,12,15

J
jacking37:10
jail 81:22
January 6:2367:21 114:14

800.523.7887

-.

i

12I2OOOOS.~y.

NY. _ y SI>udiq

c-................ _

Reponmlmt."""
Page 128

Jews9;17
job 26:20 36:14,14 98:11
101:8102:15
Joined 7:4,24
joInt22:8,10 91:17,19
Jolntly 22:22
Judplent 56:9
judgments 72: 19
Jump 63: 15
jumps 106:24
Ju:ne75:17
Jurisdktion 8:21
jur:Isdic:tlooa 4:9
jury 71:5 76:8
Justice 8:7 15:24
justIficaUoD 38:20
Just:ifkatioDS 54: 13
justified 39:7

87:5,1289:1992:2,6,24
94:695:6,20,21,24 99: 17
101:19104:15,21105:9
105:12,18106:9,16,17
107:20 108:23,24109:15
110:2,6111:5,7,14,17,20
112:3,3,4,8,10,17,18
113:3
lmowIDg 108:22 109:6
knowledge 5:9 58:15 91:5
96:6
known 13:3
knows 105:12 109:22

1egaI75;16 85:13 90;5
legality 90:24
legislation 46:5 100:9
legislative 3: 10, 13 20:21
41:10 46:10 66:6,894:16
95:697:12,19
legitimate 11:9 90:10
96:19,21,22
length 28:10 '
lesser 50:7
let's 29:19 93:15108:11
112:17
level 5:18 61:22
levels 27:2
L
Levin 27:22
L3:2
levy 29:20 38:18 42:20
labor 72:14
54:15 111:21
labs 37:5,5,6
liabDity 6:3
lack 17:622:16100:11
licensed 15:5
if
101:5111:17
licensees 4:17 5:8
Kathy 3:966:4,5,777:13
lacking 98:20
licenses 69:6
keep 50:7 52:14 55:17
larceny 71: 14 76:11
lieu 78:9
kept 28:22
large 4:12 46:952:292:2
life 20:5 53:1287:5,13
key90:14
92:23
ligbt90:3105:17
largely 34:21 47:961:2
kid53:19
likewise 86:5
kind 57:2195:1597:23
100:5
limit30:17111:13
108:21 110:4 112:3
larger 66: 19
line 27:10 28:2344:475:7
largest 46:2074: 13,24
kinds50:1984:4
89:696:5 103:9 106:18
know 4:4 9:13 18:425:11
late 12:10,13,19 46:6 70:13 lines 76:14
26:7,14,24 27:11 28:2,5,6 laundering 71 : 14
linked 54:8 64:2178:19
28:2429:10 30:22 31:17 law4:1915:6 21:625:15
82:19
66:23 68:5 71:6,9 73:16
31:1933:21 34:2335:3
liquid 9:20
35:1736:7,15,16,1737:3
75:2089:8 108:13
listed 37:6
37:13,15,16,1838:22,24 lawful 22:13
little 80:16106:22112:18
39:13 40:4,12,13,2041:9 laws 79:24
live 11 :11 30: 11
41:18,2442:9,11,24,24
lawsuits 76:21
livelihood 40:6
43:7,21 44:5,23 45:2,4,6 lawyers 68:3
livery 70:23
Law's5:2177:6
45:1247:1448:15,19
lives 12:7 53:1554:4,18
50:11,16,1853:2054:13
lead 101:12103:11
89:16,18103:10
55:8,21,2256:7,1657:7
leading 10:974:14
local 28:15
57:17,2358:2159:5,9,13 leap 48:15
locality's 51:23,
leave 39:22
59:1361:2062:1778:7
Locating 10:21
led 22:17 82:6
79:3,1781:15,18,19,21
logic 86:2 99:20
82:2,4,7,22,2283:4,6,22 left 17:3 72:8
long9:5 16:13 27:13 57:10
"

Associated Repotters Int'!.. Inc,

800.523.1881

,,
,
;

"

IOO.S23.7111

12I2OOII05.Aaooy. NY. ~-'CommiOeo ... _

_~Intl..u.:.

Page 129

\,
.'

I

. 1
!

57:1967:1079:22104:5
112:11
longer 34:9 66: 19
long.term 85:5
look 7:7 27:9,20 32:23,24
40:24 42:18 43:1159:7
62:1098:4 104:18110:9
looked 27:930:1934:2
50:1796:6100:22101:3
102:2
looldng60:5 80:7104:8
109:9
looks 110:5
loose 37:7
loss 18:2419:920:599:5
losses 17:22,24 20:7 21:16
52:20 72:5 99:2,8 103:8
lost 10:324:860:4
lot 26:9 35: 18 40:2 53:24
56:1359:10 79:2,20
85:1787:7,2294:5 105:6
lots 35:22 38:22 54:9
Lou 7:22 28:11 34:20
40:21 53:2055:21
Louis 3:3 7:9,15
Lou's 28:7
Iower9:8 18:6,22,2344:16
52:16
luck 96:23
lucrative 69: 18

luxury 72:7
..

I

--~

M
Macielak3:11 84:18,20
91:4,10,12,19,2392:5,17
93:11,2194:17,20,23
95:7,1897:5 105:19
magical 5:2
main 83:5,9
maintenance 20:3
major 14:15 23:8 67:9
74:19
making 10:2 50:19
male 102:2

Manage 15:10
mauaged 14:24 15:2,5,14
15:17,1833:2,10 41:11
69:485:589:21 101:11
managers 68:3
mandated 100:8
manipulate 75: 13
manipulated 68:23
manner 17: 13
man·made 53:9
Marest 19:20
marked 65:10
market 22:2 65:13 94:9
marketplace 21:15 22:18
Marsh 23:5,1274:13,16,24
76:6,9
Martin 75:15
material 60:4
materials 18:16
matrix 100:17
matters 54:4,5,5
mattresses 18:7
McLennan 23:5 74:13
meau 26:1927:11,13,16
28:429:14,1436:8,14
39:2,744:3,2045:11 54:8
54:9 55:11,14 59:4 60: 19
60:2062:578:1679:2
81:16,19,2082:683:2,6
83:23 85:21 88:8 92: 13
95:19105:4,5,16107:19
107:21 108:4 110:13
112:12
means 6:20 99:2
measurable 36:21
measure92:23 100:18
measures 21 :1898:24
103:11 104:14
mechanism 40: 12
mechanisms 46:16
Medicaid 13:21 15:12,13
83:389:9,16,2096:3
medical 17:24 36:11 38:23
66:2468:3,5,2469:671:8

Associated Reporter& Inn. Inc.

.

71:10 100:4,7111:4
medieaDy 69:9 .
Medicare 5:24 89:9
medication 14:9,10 34:14
medlcatious 13:19
meetl8:10 81:19 99:17
106:5
meeting 46: II
Dieetlngs93:15
member 7:5
members7:1919:1791:9
95:17 96:2498:14
mention 85:15
mentioned 30: 10 40:15
44:2359:1482:19100:17
106:12,13 110:24
mergers 100:24
message 55: 19,20
met 26:3 46:16105:9
method 33:15 111:14
Milano 3:57:10 8:2 28:7
44:245:8,16,1947:19
48:5,9,17,2249:8,13,16
49:2150:3,1451:8,12
53:754:359:17,2460:5
63:4,964:5,9,2365:6,21
65:24
million5:5,12,158:9,10
10:11,1213:2414:4,17
15:7,1521:9,2325:8
29:15,1532:6,634:4,15
35:17 43:14,19,2145:11
46:2447:648:13,14,23
49:561:1763:2168:20
71:1672:18,20 73:3,6
76:2379:20 80:9,9 87:12
87:18,2088:5,6
mlllions 6:24 14:823:2
108:6
Mills 28:20
mind 80:15 81:20 83:23
•
84:13 88:1694:15
minimum 89:21
minority 7:5 9:17

800.523.7887

800.523.7887

12I200005, AlboDy, NY, _ l y SIandiPf Cqmm;tw "1DsuraDc:c,

_

~

lm1., Inc.

Page 130

misiDte@retation 14:11
missing 30: 11
mjssjoB8:12 23:22,24 27:5
80:298:16,17,2199:13
108:22
mistakes 100:8
mis-prescribing 34: 14
modeled 48:7
modest 53: 16 59:19
Monday 64: 13
monetary 76:19
money6:1125:1026:9
28:229:2155:10,1764:2
68:671:1377:1678:9,12
78:1379:1683:1587:7
92:10 102:12 106:2

i,_ ./

Associated Reporters Int'!., Inc.

800.523.7887

